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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

Before the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board

In the Matter of )
)

CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY ) Docket Nos. 50-329CP
(Midland Plents, ) 5 0-33 0CP
Units 1 and 2) )

) (Remand Proceeding)

BRIEF OF THE DOW CHEMICAL COMPANY
INCORPORATING FINDINGS OF FACT AND

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

INTRODUCTION

On July 2 through July 31, 1979, this Board conducted an

inquiry pursuant to a Notice of Hearing dated May 3,1979, which

scheduled an evidentiary hearing on the following " issues":
i

" Issue No. 1

htether there was an attempt by parties or
attorneys to prevent full disclosure of, or
to withhold relevant factual information
from the Licensing Board in the suspension
hearings.

" Issue No. 2

Whether there was a failure to make affirmative
full disclosure on the record of the material
facts relating to Dow's intentions concerning
performance of its contract with Consumers.

" Issue No. 3

hhether there was an attempt to present mis-
leading testimony to the Ticensing Board con-
cerning Dow's intentions.
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" Issue No. 4

Whether any of the parties or attorneys attempted
to mislead the Licensing Board concerning the
preparation or presentation of the Temple testi-
mony.

" Issue No. 5

What sanctions, if any, should be imposed as a
result of affirmative finds on any of the above
issues. "

*

Prior to the hearing, extensive discovery depositions were taken

during the months of May and early June 1979, in Midland, Michigan;

Jackson, Michigan; Atlanta, Georgia; Washington, D. C. and Coral

Gables, Florida.

The evidentiary hearing held during July 1979 was ex-

haustive and involved the production of testimony through fourteen '

witnesses. The testimony elicited at the hearing conclusively
established the following:

1. In September 1976, Dow's Michigan Division,

when told that it would have to provide a

witness for the suspension hearing, advised

Consumers that the position of the Michigan

Division at that time was that the contract

between the parties was valid but no longer

advantageous to the Division for a number of

.
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specified reasons. Consumers was told that

the Dow U. S. A. Board was then conducting a

corporate review of the Dow-Consumers contract

at the recommendation of the Michigan Division

and that Consumers was invited to make any in-

put it felt necessary.

2. Thereaf ter, representatives of Dow and

Consumers met on September 21, 1976 and on

September 24, 1976 and, on both occasions,

Consumers told Dow that it would sue Dow if

Dow's testimony in the forthcoming suspension

hearing was not " supportive" of Consumers and

a suspension of the construction licenses
!

resulted.

3. On September 27, 1976, after a review of the

Michigan Division position, the Dow U.S. A.

Board reached the decision that the nuclear

project was still of economic benefit to Dow.

In reaching this decision, the DOW U.S.A.

Board considered, among other factors, the

*
threats of litigation against Dow if the Dow

position in the suspension hearing was not

" supportive" of Consumers and a suspension

resulted.
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4. Thereafter, counsel for Dow and counsel for

Consumers began the preparation of the Temple

testimony. Dow counsel attempted to meet the

information demands of Consumers while at the

same time trying to protect Dow from engaging

in conduct that consumers might subsequently

claim was not " supportive " if the construction

licenses were thereafter suspended.

Dow counsel tried to insure that the informa-

tion supplied to Consumers was in fact the

information that Consumers itself had requested

and was not information gratuitously colunteered

by Dow. Dow counsel tried to have Consumers ,

prepare the written testimony so that it was

clear that the information supplied by Dow was

responsive to Consumers ' demands and not volun-

teered by Dow.

.

5. Mr. Temple was directly involved in the

preparation of his testimony and it in fact

was his testimony that was filed with the

Board. He was the most competent and

knowledgeable Dow witness available to
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testify concerning the intentions of The Dow

Chemical Company with respect to the nuclear

contract. His testimony on this issue was

complete and accurate.

In summary, there was no evidence adduced at the hearing of any

conduct on the part of Dow or Dow counsel that would fall within

the parameters of Board Issues 1 through 5.

The " issues" set forth in the ASLB Order of May 3, 1979

are extremely vague !and do not set out specific factual matters

relating to any conduct that the Board or other parties might feel

to be within the parameters of the " issues" set out in the order.

In order to decide what specific factual matters might be con-

sidered to fall within the parameters of the ASLB general state- '

ment of " issues", Dow has reviewed the Opinion and Order of the

ASLB dated September 27, 1977, as amended by Order dated November

4, 1977, and the Decision of the ASLAB dated February 14, 1978.

*/ The " issues", as framed by the ASLB
Order of May 3, 1979, are so vague
as to raise serious Constitutional
questions if the Board entertains
any intention of going any further
than determining whether further
hearings are necessary.
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It has also reviewed the discovery depositions of all witnesses

and transcripts of the evidentiary hearing to determine, from the

questions asked by the Board, Staff counsel and counsel for

Consumers, what specific factual matters they may conceive to

be arguably within the parameters of the Board 's general state-

ment of " issues". Dow's review has not included a review to

determine whether the conduct of Consumers in the preparation

of the Temple testimony and the conduct of Consumers and the

Staff in preparation for the hearing might be viewed as arguably

within the parameters of tha Board 's general statement of " issues".

Dow leaves these subiects to the Board for decision.

Dow believes that the testimony has shown that the

conduct of itself and its counsel was clearly proper and there i

was no conduct engaged in that falls within the scope of the

Board 's " issues". However, Dow believes that certain questions

asked by counsel for Consumers, Staff counsel and the Board

during the hearing indicate a need for further discussion

and clarification. Accordingly, Dow believes the following

list contains the factual or legal matters that may be con-
sidered by the Board, Consumers, Staff or Dow to be' within

the parameters of the Board 's general statement of " issues".
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1. Did Consumers, during the course of a
September 21, 1976 meeting with Dow,
express a belief that certain matters
could be " finessed" if no intervenors
appeared at the suspension hearing?

2. Did Consumers, during the course of a
September 21, 1976 meeting with Dow,
suggest the possibility of using a
Dow witness who was not fully knowledge-
able of the Dow-Consumers relationship?

3 Did Consumers, during the course of a
September 21, 1976 meeting with Dow,
propose that Consumers would " drag its
feet" in the hearing process because,
as long as construction continues,
Consumers "has a lever"?

4. Did Consumers, during the course of
a September 21, 1976 meeting and a
September 24, 1976 meeting with Dow,
threaten to sue Dow if the construc-
tion licenses were suspended as a '

result of Dow's failure to positively
support Consumers ' position in the
suspension hearing?

5. Was the role of Dow's attorneys in the
preparation of the Temple testimony
proper?

(a) Nas there anything improper in
Dow's decision to take the legal
position that it was no longer a
party to the NRC proceedings af.ter
an order had been entered by the
U. S. Court of Appeals for the
District of Colunbia Circuit,
dismissing it as an intervenor
in the then pending proceedings?
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*

(b) Was there anything improper in the
alleged failure of Dow counsel to
advise Consumars counsel Renfrow and
Rosso that Consumers had threatened
Dow with litigation if the construc-
tion licenses were suspended due to
the failure of Dow to positively
support the Consumers position in
the suspension proceedings?

(c) Was there anything improper in the
alleged failure of Dow counsel to ad-
vise Consumers counsel Renfrow and
Rosso that Consurers counsel Renfrow
had suggested, during the course of a
September 21, 1976 meeting with Dow,
that a Dow witness be used who was not
fully knowledgeable of the Dow-Consumers
relationship?

(d) Did the conduct of Dow counsel create
the impression that consumers alone
had prepared the Temple testimony?
If so, was this improper?

,

(e) Did Dow counsel embellish upon and
broaden the Dow Chemical U.S.A.
decision as it was stated by Mr.
Oreffice on September 27, 1976?

6. Was the direct testimony of Mr. Temple
properly prepared in view of the fact
that it did not contain a reference to
the Michigan Division recommendation?

7. Was Mr. Temple in f act Dow's most
knowledgeable witness in view of the
f act he did not take part in the Dow
Chemical U.S.A. Board deliberations
that took place immediately following the
presentation by the review team?
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8. Was Mr. Temple himself actively involved
in the preparation of his testimony and
was it in fact his 'astimony?

9. Was there anything improper in Dow's
failure to advise the ASLB of Consumers '
threat to sue Dow f the licenses were
suspended due to Dow's failure to
positively support consumers' position
in the suspension hearings?

Dow emphasizes that, in its opinion, not all of

the above stated matters are viable " issues" meriting discussion

and consideration. Nonetheless, Dow will hereafter discuss each

" issue" enumerated above with appropriate references to the

transcripts !and then suggest, under the heading " CONCLUSION",

how the " issue" should be resolved based on the facts elicited

!

*/ Citations to the transcript will
be made by identifying the par-
ticular witness testifying and
the specific page referred to
(i.e., Oreffice 54,121).
Footnotes containing citations
to the transcript and to ex-
hibits are set out in a separY:e
Appendix for the Board 's con-
venience.
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during the course of the evidentiary hearing.

As noted supra, Dow, in this Brief, will not discuss

the conduct of Consumers in the preparation of the Temple

testimony or the conduct of Consumers and the Staff in prepara-

tion for the suspension hearing. It leaves for Board determi-

nation the question of whether their respective conduct was

proper or whether such conduct falls within the parameters

of the Board 's general statement of " issues".

i

*/ During the recent hearing, undersigned
Dow counsel became aware of this Board 's
view of the role and duty of attorneys
for parties and witnesses appearing
before it. While this subject matter
is unrelated to the Board 's enumerated
"i s sues ", it is, in Dow's opinion, of
sufficient importance to merit dis-
cussion in this Brief. A discussion
of this subject matter appears at the
end of this Brief in an Addendum.
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DISCUSSION OF " ISSUES"

I. DURING THE COURSE OF A SEPTEMBER 21, 1976
MEETING WITH DOW, CONSUMERS DID EXPRESS
A BELIEF THAT CERTAIN MATTERS COULD BE
" FINESSED " IF NO INTERVENORS APPEARED
AT THE SUSPENSION HEARING.

Subsequent to the September 13, 1976 negotiating meet-

ing between Dow and Consumers at which Consumers was advised of

the Michigan Division recommendation and the reasons for it,

a meeting was scheduled for September 21, 1976 for the purpose

of explaining to Dow what would happen at the suspension hearing

and the possible impact on the construction licenses of various

positions Dow U.S.A. might take. The Nute notes of that meeting

state in part as follows:

i

"B. Factors to be considered in suspension
hearing (5) - Consumers assumes cherry will
not appear because of lack of funds -

Consumers says suspension hearing most
critical - they believe that since there is
no discovery, and probably no ir.tervenor
cross-examination - will be able to finesse
Dow-Consumers continuing dispute. " _3/

At the hearing, Mr. Nute testified that Mr. Renfrow made this

statement in the September 21, 1976 meeting. During that same

meeting, Mr. Nute had referred to the 1974-75 correspondence

between Dow and Consumers and inquired what effect the Dow

negotiating position (that it was excused from the contract if
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the plant was not completed by 1984) would have on the cost-benetit

analysis.

Mr. Hanes recalled a discussion during the meeting con-

cerning whether M7 Cherry would appear at the suspension hearing

in which Dow challenged Mr. Renfrow's belief that Mr. Cherry would

not appear. Mr. Hanes did not recall a discussion about a

" continuing dispute" between Consumers and Dow. Mr. Klomparens

testified that he could recall a discussion regarding whether Mr.

Cherry would appear, could not recall the use of the word " finesse"

but stated he was sure Consumers had the feeling things would be

a lot easier if Mr. Cherry was not there. Mr. Klomparens also

stated that Mr. Nute 's notes were an accurate summary of what

transpired in the meeting.
,

Mr. Falahee testified that he could not recall whether

the word " finesse" was used. Mr. Renfrow testified that he

did not recall using the exact words attributed to him in the

Nute notes but "could have". He went on to state that he was

simply telling Dow the " obvious " - "if Mr. Cherry was not therc,

the hearing would go forward on a quicker pace with less inter-

ruption."

Mr. Bacon 's testimony corroborated Mr. Nute 's notes.

When the relevant portion of Mr. Nute 's notes of the September 21,

1976 meeting was read to Mr. Bacon and he was asked whether he
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recalled such a statement, Mr. Bacon responded, " Generally, yes. "

Mr. Bacon then testified as follows:

Q "And what is it that you recall being said?"

A "I can't recall the specific words but I
think probably it was in response to a
concern voiced by FT. Nute about documents,
and I think he specifically referred to
exchanges of correspondence in ' 74 and '75
about the contract being disclosed in the
proceeding."

Q "So Mr. Nute expressed some kind of concern
about correspondence exchanged between the
parties being exposed in the proceeding and
that led to a comment to the effect of the
one I just read, that since there would be
no intervenors present and no discovery, that
there would be an ability to finesse a con-
tinuing dispute between Dow and Consumers?"

A "I generally remenber both comments. I'm not
sure that one was in response to the other.

,

I can 't be positive about that. "
'

Q "But you have a general recollection that
somebody indicated that there would be an
ability to finesse a dispute between
Consumers - "

A "I can 't tell you what words were used, but
I think that was the general idea expressed,
that if it was not a contested hearing, then
it was likely that the contract dispute, if
you want to call it, of '74 - '75 would be
a ired . "

Q "Could you repeat that? I think you said
'likely" when you meant not likely, or
vice versa."

CHAIRMAN MILLER: "Could you rephrase your
answer, please?"

1301 988
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MR. POTTER: "Do you remember what your
answer was, Mr. Bacon?"

THE WITNESS: "Not now. I don't even
remember the question."

(Whereupon, the Reporter read from the
record as requested.)

THE WITNESS: "You're correct. It should
be 'would not be aired. ' " ,l_3/3

CONCLUSION

During the September 21, 1976 meeting, Mr. Nute in-

quired as to what effect Dow's negotiating position as set out

in the 1974-75 Dow-Consumers correspondence would have on the i

cost-benefit analysis. Mr. Bacon interpreted Mr. Nute 's comments

to express concern over the disclosure of the correspondence in

the suspension proceeding. Mr. Renfrow responded that if no

intervenor appeared it was likely that the " contract dispute"

would be " finessed". In fact, Mr. Cherry did appear and there

was a full airing of the Dow-Consumers relationship.
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II. DURING TIIE COURSE OF A SEPTEf '1, 1976
MEETING WITII DOW, CONSUMERS Did SUGGEST
TIIE POSSIBILITY OF USING A DOW WITNESS
WIIO WAS NOT FULLY 130WLEDGEABLE OF TIIE
DOW-CONSUMERS RELATIONSHIP .

Mr. Nute's notes of the September 21, 1976 meeting state

in part as follows:

"4. Effect of delay steam, and
cost / benefit analysis tilted - Dow becomes
very important because here two issues
(above) can come together - Rex suggested
that Dow witness might be someone from
Dow Chemical U.S. A. or corporate area
who is unaware of Midland Division recom-
mendation to Oreffice - this person would
testify as to effects of further delay
upon Dow " ,1_4/

At the hearing, Mr. Nute testified that his notes ac-

'
curately reported what he understood Mr. Renfrow to state regard-

ing the selection of the Dow witness. Mr. Nute further testified

that Mr. Renfrow was not merely asking for a witness who did not

"have such strong personal beliefs as Mr. Temple had". Mr. Nute

also testified that he did not express any concern over using

Mr. Temple as a witness but did ask questions to determine what

effect certain things said or done by Mr. Temple or Dow would

have in the suspension hearings.

While the notes of Mr. IIanes and Mr. Klomparens of this

meeting are silent on this point,_0/ oth recall a discussion onl
b
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the nature of the Dow witness. Mr. Hanes testified that during

the meeting Mr. Nute raised a question as to whether Mr. Temple

should be the witness because of "the announced position he had

already taken". In response, Mr. Renfrow made a comment that

"maybe the Dow witness should be someone not familiar with the

position Mr. Temple had taken". Mr. Hanes responded emphatically

that "that wouldn't be appropriate at all, that the Dow witness

would be a knowledgeable person, and he would testify fully at

the hearing". Mr. Hanes further testified that Mr. Renfrow

" popped out with this idea". Mr. Hanes " chopped it off" and

"that pretty much ended the discussion".

Mr. Klomparens understood Mr. Renfrow to be asking for

a witness who was less emotionally involved than Mr. Temple and

"maybe less knowledgeable about it". Mr. Klomparens recalled

Mr. Hanes making a statement that Dow would supply a knowledge-

able witness who would tell the truth. This statement of Mr.

Hanes was made at the point in the meeting when Mr. Renfrow was

discussing the type of Dow witness hc wanted.

Turning to Consumers' version of this aspect of the

September 21, 1976 meeting, Mr. Renfrow categorically denied

making the statement attributed to him in the Nute notes. He

went on to testify that, before attending the September 21, 1976

1301 ')91
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meeting, Mr. Bacon had told him that Dow was concerned over using

Mr. Temple as a witness and Mr. Renfrow and Mr. Bacon then dis-

cussed possible alternative Dow witnesses. According to Mr.

Renfrow, there was no discussion of alternative Dow witnesses

in the September 21, 1976 meeting Mr. Renfrow further

stated that Dow expressed concern over using Mr. Temple as a

witness during the September 21, 1976 meeting and that "I told

them that if they had a problem with Mr. Temple, they might

look at providing someone else as a witness". Mr. Renfrow

testified that he did recall Mr. Hanes stating that the Dow

witness would tell the truth but could not recall when it came

up in the meeting,

!

Mr. Bacon testified that he could not recall Mr. Renfrow

making the statements attributed to him in the Nute notes. He

also could not recall hearing Mr. Nute express any concern over

using Mr. Temple as a witness at any time before the September

N
21, 1976 meeting or during the meeting. 2___9] Mr. Bacon did recall

Mr. Hanes stating that the Dow witness would tell the truth.

Mr. Falahee rtated that he could not recall any dis-

cussion regas. ding the use of a less than fully knowledgeable

witness. He did recall Mr. Nute stating thai. "there may be
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a problem with Mr. Temple as a witness " because of his p2-ior public

statements regarding the nuclear plant.}.2| Mr. Falahee did not

form any impression that Mr. Nute was in any way reluctant to

use Mr. Temple as a witness but rather ''he wanted us to be aware

that that had been said".

CONCLUSION

During the course of the September 21, 1976 meeting,

Mr. Nute advised Consumers that there might be a problem with

using Mr. Temple as a witness because of his earlier public

statements regarding the project. The statement by Mr. Nute

'
did not reflect any re.luctance over using Mr. Temple as the

Dow witness but was made to be sure Consumers was aware of the

statements Mr. Temple had made. Mr. Renfrow did suggest the

use of a Dow witness who was not aware of Mr. Temple 's views

on the project and his recommendation in light of those views.

Mr. Hancs immediately responded that Dow would provide a fully

knowledgeable witness who would testify truthfully. The matter

was terminated at that point. Ultimately, Mr. Temple was called

as the Dow witness and was Dow's most knowledgeable witness on

i.he issue of the intentions of The Dow Chemical Company regard-

ing the nuclear project.
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III. DURING THE COURSE OF A SEPTEMBER 21, 1976
MEETING WITH DOW, CONSUMERS DID STATE
THAT CONSUMERS VOULD HAVE A " LEVER" AS
IONG AS CONSTRUCTION cot 7I'INUED.

Mr. Nute's notes of the September 21, 1976 meeting state

in part as follows:

" Consumers said that as long
as construction continues, Consumers
has a lever and will drag its feet
in hearing on merits - if construc-
tion stopped, intervenors have lever
and will drag feet in hearing on the
merits " 3_4/4

At the hearing, Mr. Nute testified that the above quoted matter

was what he understood Mr. Renfrow to say. He was certain that

Mr. Renfrow used the phrase " lover" _p./3
but was less sure whether

i

the phrase " drag feet" was used by Mr. Renfrow or was Mr. Nute's

paraphrase of what Mr. Renfrow said. Mr. Nute was certain that

the " lever" discussion referred to both Consumers and the Inter-
venors having a " lever" under certain circumstances.

Mr. Hanes recalled some discussion on this point to

the effect that if Intervenors obtained a suspension, it would

be a "hard thing to overcome" and if Consumers "could keep con-

struction going they had a project that was viable. Mr. Hanes

stated that Consumers indicated that there was a large investment
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in the project and it "would be an advantage to the project if
they could keep it going pending the hearings and whatever was

!to come".

Mr. Klomparens recalled Mr. Renfrow ! .dicating that if
construction could continue, it would be beneficial to Consumers

whereas if construction was suspended, it would be advantagtaus
to the Intervenors. Mr. Klomparens described the thrust of Mr.

Renfrow's remarks as I guess it 's the situation that if"
...

I got the ball and I'm running, you've got to stop me. If you

get the ball and you're running, I've got to stop you, type of
thing. '

Messrs. Renfrow, Bacon and Falahee all testified that
,

the " lever" conversation was used only in connection with the
Intervenors.

CONCLUSION

The three Dow personnel attending the September 21,

1976 meeting all heard some statements made regarding an advantage

to Intervenors if a suspension of the construction licenses
occurred. They also heard statements made to the effect that

there would be an advantage to Consumers if it could avoid a
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t

suspension and continue construction pending further NRC hearings.

Mr. Renfrow indicated that if there was no suspension, Consumers

would have a " lever". Ultimately, there was no delay in the

suspension hearing and no evidence was produced of an attempc

by Consumers to " drag its feet" in the hearing process.

IV. DURING THE COURSE OF A SEPTEMBER 21,
1976 MEETING AND A SEPTEMBER 24, 1976
MEETING WITH DOW, CONSUMERS DID THREATEN
TO SUE DOW IF THE CONSTRUCTION LICENSES
WERE SUSPENDED AS A RESULT OF DOW' S
FAILURE TO POSITIVELY CUPPORT CONSUMERS '
POSITION IN THE SUSPENSION HEARING,

'BACKGROUtm

In order to understand and properly assess this issue,

some understanding of the events that preceded the September 21,

1976 and September 24, 1976 meetings is necessary. From 1970-

1976, the history of the Dow-Consumers contractual relationship

with respect to the completion of the nuclear power plant had

42/
been one of continual delay and constantly accelerating cost.-

During 1974-1975, there was an =xchange of correspondence between

the companies in which Dow sought changes in the contract. The

correspondence expressed Dow's unhappiness with the delays in
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construction. By mid-1976, Dow was clearly unhappy with the

length of time it was taking to build the plant and its cost.

By June 1976, the relationship between the parties was, at least

from Dow's point of view, " strained" but efforts to negotiate

contractual changes continued. O4 June 30, 1976, Mr. Temple

wrote a letter to Mr. Youngdahl setting out the basic demands

Dow was making in the contractual negotiations.

After the June 30, 1976 letter was sent to Consumers

and before the negotiating meeting of September 13, 1976, several

significant events occurred. On July 21, 1976, the U. S. Court

of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit remanded to the

NRC for further hearing several questions regarding the granting

of the construction licenses to Consumers. [Aeschliman v. U. S.
,

Nuclear Reculatory Commission, 547 F. 2d 622 (D . C . Cir. 1976);

rev'd sub nom Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Corporation v. Natural

Resources Defense Council, Inc., 435 U. S. 519 (1978)] This

decision raised the possibility of still further delays in the

project. Consumers did not contact Dow at any time prior to

the September 13, 1976 meeting to discuss the impact of this

decision on the project. On August 5,1976, Mr. Youngdahl

called Mr. Temple and advised him that the new revised cost of

the plant was $1.67 billion with the possibility that it might
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M/ *
cost $2 billion. Mr. Temple then asked both Mr. Nute and Mr.

Burroughs to take opposing positions, review the viability of the

Dow-Consumers centractual relationship and report back to him.

He also discussed his developing thoughts regarding the benefit

to Dow's Michigan Division of the nuclear project with Mr. Carl

Gerstacker, a member of the Dow Board of Directors. At that

time, Mr. Temple was concluding that " continued reliance upon

Consumers Power Company for the Division's long-term future, and

particularly steam, was not going to work out well for us. "

Prior to September 8, 1976, Mr. Temple advised Mr. Nute

of his position on the contract relationship. Mr. Nute and

Mr. Wessel thereafter met with Mr. Temple and a corporate review

was suggested to insure that any Dow position that became an issue
);

iin the remand proceeding would be in fact the Dow corporate
position. Mr. Temple adopted the suggestion and sent a letter

dated September 8, 1976 to Mr. Oreffice discussing the Dow-

Consumers relationship, stating the Michigan Division conclusion

regarding that relationship and recommending a corporate review

of the Michigan Division conclusion. The Michigan Division

position was not primarily economic. Mr. Temple did not consider

the nuclear plant cost advantage ($4 million a year over the

*/ The estimated cost of the project at
the time the contract was executed
in 1967 was $267 million.
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alternative fcssil fuel plant) to be significant when weighed

against his views of Ccnsumers ' capability of delivering on their

promises both in quantity and in consistency and in time.

The Michigan Division position was that the contract was no longer

advantageous to Dow but that Dow was going to fulfill its con-

tractual obligations.

On September 9, 197r Mr. Youngdahl called Mr. Temple

and, in anticipation of the apcoming negotiating meeting, dis-

cussed 'cusumers' position on each of the points contained in

Mr. Temple 's lett .r of June 30, 1976. While Mr. Temple stressed

an urgent need to hear from Consumers regarding the effect of

the Aeschliman decision on the project and expressed the view

that "a significant and dramatic change in the entire situation

h td occurred", _p/5 i

Mr. Youngdahl testified that he came away from

the telephone call with the belief that the parties had reached

tentative agreement on contract changes and final agreement would

be reached at the September 13, 1976 meeting.

On September 13, 1976, the Dow and Consumers negotiat-

ing teams met. Mr. Bacon, a regular member of the Consumers

negotiating team and the most knowledgeable person on the

Consumers team with respect to the impact of Aeschliman, was

not present, Messrs. Howell and Youngdahl testified that they

entered the meeting believing a new contract would be agreed to

with little time or effort. Dow entered the meeting with an
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agenda that called for the discussion of three issues in the

following order -- (1) the Aeschliman decision and its implications

on the project, (2) the status of the project, and (3 ) contract

renegotiation 3 After discussion of the first two issues and

af ter repeated statements by Mr. Youngdahl that Mr. Temple

would have to testify at the upcoming hearings, Dow caucused

and then advised Consumers of the Michigan Division position

and the reasons for it. Consumers was told that Dow considered

the contract between the parties to be valid and that Dow intended

to honor it, but the contract was no longer in the best interests

of Dow's Michigan Division. Consumers was advised that Mr.

Temple had called for a corporate review to which Consumers

would be invited to make an input. Apart from stating the view,

at the Sep'. ember 13, 1976 meeting, that the contract was valid '

and Dow intended to honor it, Dow again reiterated this view in

a telephone call between Mr. Youngdahl and Mr. Temple on

September 14, 1976 and in a telephone call between Mr. Nute

and Mr. Bacon on September 17, 1976. Mr. Bacon reported this

fact to other Consumers personnel on September 17, 1976 at a

meeting where there was some discussion concerning whether Dow

was taking the position that the contract was valid but no

longer advantageous to frustrate the purposes of the contract.
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TIIE SEPTEMBER 21, 1976 MEETING

As noted at page 11, supra, the purpose of the September

21, 1976 meeting was to explain to Dow the issues involved in

the suspension hearing and what effect various Dow Chemical U.S. A.

positions might have on the construction licenses. Mr . Nuto 's

notes of the Septecher 21, 1976 meeting state, in part, as

follows:

"4 . Effect of delay steam, and
cost / benefit analysis tilted - Dow becomes
very important because here two issues (above)
can come together - Rex suggested that Dow
witness might be someone from Dow Chemical
U.S.A. or Corporate area who is unaware of
Midl; ad Division recommendation to Oreffice -
this person would testify as to effects of
further delay upon Dow - if Dow accents
division recommendation and takes that
position in suspension hearing, the n '

construction license will be suspendcC
for at least one year - no doubt about
it - Falahee added that Consumers may
lose its construction permit entirely -
Consumers said that as long as construction
continues, Consumers has a lever and will
drag feet in hearing on merits - if con-
struction stopped, intervenors have lever
and will drag feet in hearing on merits -
Consumers further pointed out that final
FES (environmental statement?) states that
if construction permit for Midland is can-
celled, Consumers will cancel one Unit and
transfer the other to Palisades - this was
one of basis for issuance of construction
license - Consumers threat - Falahee brouaht
up the point that Dow has an oblication
(Bacon interiects 'Section 3') under the
General Agreement to support Consumers in
the licensing proceeding. Falahoe said
'If Dow takes this posture, Consumers and
Dow will have a helluva legal problem. '
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(Note: strong implication that Consumers
would regard us in breach if we went too
far in car testimony) - Hanes replied that
Dow's witness would tell the truth as he
honestly believed it to be, whoever the Dow
witness - Palahee then made naked threat
that if Dow testimony not supportive of
Consumers (Note: no longer just if we go
too far) and that results in suspension or
cancellation of permit, then Consumers
will file suit for breach and include
as damages cost of delay, cost of proiect
if cancelled and all damages resulting
from cancellation of proiect if it causes
irreparable financial harm to Consumers.
(bankruptcy)

(Note : pretty damn close to blackmail)" $E[
(emphasis supplied)

At the hearing, FT. Nute testified that Mr. Falahee 's

comments at the September 21, 1976 meeting were to the effect

that:
'

... I want you to get up on the"

stand and testify, but you'd better be
careful what you say because if what you
say results in our construction license
being terminated and it causes us irrepar-
able financial harm, we 're going to sue you
for every penny."10/0

Mr. Nute continued:
***

"The point I'm trying to make is they
had asked ts on at least tv) or three oc-
casions if we were going to breach the
contract and we said No, it ? a valid
contract. It's a valid contract but we
don 't think it is of any -- there is a
probability or possibility that it's
going to be of any benefit to us, we 're
going to live up to our contractual obli-
gations.

1301 102

- 27 -



"And they said to us if you get up
there and say that and that results in the
license being suspended, we 're going to
sue you. And to me that 's going tc have
a -- well at that time I thought that 's
going to have an attempt to influence
what you're going to say, and that's why
I wrote, ' pretty damn close to blackmail'." N

Mr. Nute also testified that Dow was told that if its testimony

did not support the position that the project had an economic

advantage and that resulted in a suspension of the license, Dow

would be sued. 2 !

Mr. Hanes ' notes of the Sept 2mber 21,1976 meeting state,

in part, as follows:

"Need Dow to avoid suspension +
if suspended would ultimately lose

,

license. Can't consider sunk costs
in evaluation.

"If live up to K but no longer
economically viable. Will sue Dow for
K violation - shutdown costs, invest-
ment, bankruptcy. " 23/

At the hearing, Mr. Hanes testified that Mr. Falahee told Dow

that "if Dow took the position that Joe Temple had enunciated,

!that we'd be having a lawsuit." bT. Hanes stated that there

was quite a bit of talk about what was " support" for Consumers

under the contract and that Mr. Falahoe indicated that Dow had

an obligation to support Consumers as Consumers interpreted the

word " support" and if Dow did not do it and a suspension resulted,
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Dow would be subjecter o a lawsuit. FT. Falahoe also itemized

Consumers' losses in the event of suspension to include sunk

costs, purchase of power from other cources, loss of a possible
76/

sale of an interest in the plant and possible bankruptcy.--" Mr.

Hancs also stated that Consumers took the position that Dow had

!
the obligation to advocate the project and try to " sell it".

Mr. Klomparens ' notes of the September 21, 1976 meeting

state, in part, as follows:

" Jim - If Dow takes this posture,
Cons. and Dow will have a hell of
a legal problem." j78

At the he aring , FT . Klomparens stated that this note referred to

a statement made by FT. Falahoe and the phrase "this pos ture " re-
'

ferred to the Michigan Division position.

Although Dow's Michigan Division had repeatedly advised

Consumers that it considered the contract valid and intended to

honor its obligat.ons although the contract was no longer advan-

tageous in its opinion, FT. Renfrow entered the September 21,

1976 meeting thinking that the Michigan Division position meant

that Dow would repudiate the contract. bT. Renfrow testified

th at , while Mr. Renfrow was outlining the possible impacts of

various positions that Dow Chemical USA might take, Mr. Falahee

interrupted and said that if Dow breached the contract"
...
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they 'd have a hell of a legal problem. " Mr. Renfrow said he

did not recall Mr. Falahee stating that . . . if Dow t ake s this"

posture, etc. " Mr. Renfrow testified that Mr. Falahoe did not

threaten Dow with litigation at any time during the meeting and

never told Dow that a lawsuit would result if Dow wasn't

supportive of Consumers in the suspension hearing.W

Mr. Falahee testified that he made no statements during

the meeting until Mr. Renfrow had completed going through the

various alternative positions. Concerning what he communicated

to Dow during that meeting, Mr. Falahoe testified as follows:

.

"I was merely, frankly, trying to
tell their lawyers that if what they did,
regardless of what it was, if it turned
out to be a breach there would be con-

'sequences."

CHAIRMAN MILLER: " Serious consequences?a

TIIE WITNESS: "Yes, Sir."

(emphasis supplied)

***

"The point I was getting across or
trying to get across to Dow was that we
felt we did have a valid contract; if
indeed they did take action that con-
stituted a breach that it would result in
litigation. " E5/

***
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"What we were trying to tell Dow is
if you disagree with us and think you
have a legitimate reason, then you can
take that position, but act carefully,
because it is a serious oroposition and
it may result in ser__ious litigation. " p]/

__

(emphasis supplied)

** *

"I don 't recall saying if Dow's
testimony is not supportive of Consumers
-- that wasn't the thrust that I was
trying to get across. that I was trying
to get across is if, indeed, the Dow
testimony was such that it breached
_the contract, that there would be re-
sultant ef fects. " pp/ (emphasis supplied)

* **

"In other words, we weren 't telling
Dow damn it support this contract, that
wasn't o'tr position at all. Wa said if
you're coing to go with the Temple situ-

,

ation and the way you go with it and the
' - , vou go with it results in breach,

i.nq to be some consecuences.
5ta and I don't think that,

an. y -1, that we were going any. . . ,

it frankly. " 39/"the. u

.aw re 2 a pp_ led)

Mr . t si f'-d that if Dow had testified that they

*c .. e . ~0ntract uneconomic but still intended to take the
.

'seca.n a i f a suspension resulted, consumers would have sued Dow

occLuse im did not thir.k Dow could take such a position in good
. , ,

fa2 - Falahee ttated that there was some discussion re-.

g are ., aw's duty to support Consumers during the meeting.

g 1301 106

- 31 -



Regarding the question of whether the magnitude of damages in such

litigation was discussed, Mr. Falahoe stated:

"I did say, I ' m s ure , that if, indeed,
they did breach that we would have a lawsuit
-- a hell of a lawsuit, I guess I might have
sai d, and I may have tried to put some flesh
on those bones by tellina what kind of damages
I was considering.

"But as I sit here this morning, I don ' t
recall that. But I do know that a similar
note to this with that kind of languace in
it appears I believe in FT. Hanes ' notes.
And since it 's in both, I suspect I may have
said that. " 92/ (emphasis supplied)

Mr. Bacon testified that the question of possible lia-

bility between Dow and Consumers came up in the meeting but was

not a part of the prepared portion of the meeting. !
r.b Falahee

made a statement to the effect that if Dow repudiated the contract
i

and walked away and that resulted in suspension, there would be a

" hell of a legal problem" between the two companies. Mr. Bacon

stated that he could not recall any statement to the effect that

there would be a legal problem between the companies if Dow took

the position that the contract was valid but no longer economically

! e did recall some discussion during the meetingadvantageous. H

regarding Dow's obligation to support Consumers.E5! r. Bacon statedM

that if there was a good faith disagreement between Dow and Consumers

over whether the contract was advantageous to Dow and Dow testified

that it was disadvantageous, Consumers would sue if a suspension

!resulted. If Dow took the position that the contract was valid

but no longer advantageous and a suspension resulted, Mr. Bacon

stated that it would be for the courts to resolve. E!
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THE SEPTEMBER 24, 1976 MEETING

Prior to the September 14, 1976 meeting, Mr. Aymond re-

quested Mr. Bacon to prepare a written outline for his use.

The first jage of the outline contained four possible alternative
positions [3a, 3a(1), 3b and 3c] that Dow Chemical U.S. A. might

take and an estimate of the impact of each alternative an the

construction licensen.100/ On the fourth page of the outline,

Mr. Aymond caused to be inserted a statement reciting:

"We (Consumers) consider that a Dow
position other than 3a or 3a(1) would be
inconsistent with Dow's contract obliga-
tions." 101/

Mr. Aymond could not recall inserting the statement and felt that
it overstated the case.102/ Mr. Aymond could not recall receiving

i

any report back from either Mr. Bacon, Mr. Falahee or Mr. Renfrow

af ter the September 21, 1976 meeting to the effect that state-

monts were made to Dow concerning the circumstances under which

there would be litigation between the companics. Prior to

entering the September 24, 1976 meeting, Mr. Aymond felt that

the Michigan Division position was closest to 3b on his outline,

Mr. Youngdahl thought it was closest to 3a(1), Mr. Falahee

couldn't estimate and Messrs. Bacon and Howell expressed no

opinion. Messrs. Temple, Nute and Hanes thought it was closest

to 3b, while Mr. Klomparens thought it was closest to 3c.
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With respect to the September 24, 1976 meeting itself,

Mr. Nute 's notes state, in part, as follows

"Mr. Aymond said if project shut down for 18
months would severely impact value of project
to Dow in terms of cost and delay - would
probably cause license revocation - currently
have $350,000,000 in sunk costs less salvage -
cost of dismantling and restoring site -
$50 million in recoverables from Dow - com-
mitments outstanding $123 million in can-
cellation costs in addition to $350,000,000 -
wouldn 't be able to finance for quite some
time - would cancel coal-fired unit at
Campbell + pollution control devices
massive deterioration in earnings overnight
while conducting no new construction - would
lose $ 200-300 million on the project -
22 to 33% of common equity - would assert
every claim they could to avoid it - seek
damages from Dow to extent revocation
attributable to breach of contract by Dow -
if Dow repudiated it would be breach -
if Dow frustrated ability to keep going
without being obvious , still would leave
it to courts - feel that Consumers, under i

the contract, deserves Dow's support -
if reduced to a permit for only one unit
as a result of Dow not participating -
numbers could be less - (such as costs,
cancellation charges, e tc . ) " 109/

At the hearing, Mr. Nute testified that he interpreted Mr. Aymond 's

statements at the September 24, 1976 meeting to mean that if Dow

volunteered too much, it might f ace a lawsuit.

FT. Temple testified that he was not surprised when

Consumers indicated that Dow would be sued if they backed out of
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the project. He then went on to state:

"But they also described an inter-
mediate case where we said we think it 's a
lousy contract but we 've got it and we 're
go,ing to continue. And that was very closc
to where the Division was sitting at the
time the September 24th meeting took place,
and at 01at point in time there was no other
decision. And knowing that I was going to
be, probably, the witness, and havina been
told th at if they lose their license because
they were frustrated by Dow that they would
seek whatever means were available to them
to sue Dow to get their money back, I v'13,
very concerned about th at because thru's
where we were." 111/ (emphasis supplied)

Mr. Temple stated that Mr. Aymond was not suggesting that Dow adopt

an untrue position or else risk a lawsuit but that:

"He indicated that if there was any
belief on their part that Dow, in any way, i

conducted themselves in the hearing in such
a way as to -- well, in any way in the hear-
ing or outside the hearing, to frustrate
their efforts to maintain the construction
license, that they 'd sue Dow for whatever
they could, based on whatever they thought
the causes or the reasons for concluding
that Dow was at fault.

"And, as I said earlier, the Michigan
Division conclusion was essentially that
third situation." 112/

Mr. Temple went on to state that, in his opinion, Mr. Aymond wanted

to make it perfectly clear what the financial risks were if Dow

was careless,
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Mr. Hanes' notes of the September 24, 1976 meeting provide,

in part, as follows:

"Mr. Aymond continued that consumers
Power has $350 million in such costs, of which
$40 million is allocated to the steam plant.
There would be a huge :ost to return the
site to its original condition. There would
be some offsetting savings like the lowering
of taxes. He said there are commitments on
orders placed for $123 million and cancella-
tion charges would be involved. Losses of
the above magnitudes would affect Consumers
Power 's financing ability for a long period
of time. There could be no expansion.

"Mr. Aymond said that if these things
happened they would sue Dow for losses,
alleging a breach of contract by Dow, on
theory that repudiation is a breach. He
said if Dow acts to fructrate Consumers
Power it is less clear. Consumers Power
is entitled to Dow's support for the project. "

***
i

"Mr. Aymond said it was all right for
Low to say they view the situation with
concern. Dow can still support the project
and say Dow cannot stand any more delays.
Dow would still be behind the project.

"Mr. Aymond recognizes that the present
schedule is vital and that we can't avoid
the question of Air Quality Board problems.
He said there is a need to say the project
is good for Dow even if close to the neutral
point.

"Mr. Aymond said Consumers Power is
committed to the project if they can get
licenses. If Dow would withdraw support,
it would impair the ability to get li-
censes." 114/
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Mr. Hanes stated that Mr. Aymond did not precisely state that "on ly

3a or 3a(1) " would be acceptable but that was how he interpreted
115/

the combination of what Mr. Aymond and Mr. Falahee had said.

Mr. Hanes testified that he understood the word " frustration" as it
was used in the September 24, 1976 meeting to refer to a position

that Dow Chemical U.S. A. might take that the contract was valid
116/

but that "it did not like the deal anymore". Mr. Hanes also

testified that Mr. Aymond was saying:

. we 'll see you in court if"
. .

there 's a repudiation or if Dow takes the
position that it still intends to take
electricity and steam from Consumers Power
in accordance with the contracts but that
an alternative source or sources would be
more advantageous to Dow." 117/

Mr. Klomparens ' notes of the September 24, 1976 meeting i

state, in part, as follows:

"Would certainly seek to recover
damages from Dow

- If Dow were to repudiate the contract
that would be a breach

- If Dow were to just make things hard
for Cons then it's less clear &
courts would have to decide. " 118/
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At the hearing, Mr. Klomparens testified that FT. Aymond

made it clear that if Dow took the Michigan Division position and

construction was suspended or the plant was delayed, Consumers was

certainly going to seek damages from Dow, hhen asked what type of

position the phrase "if Dow were to just make things hard for

Consumers" refers to, Mr. Klomparens stated that it referred to

a position where Dow said the contract was valid but no longer

advantageous to Dow.

Mr. Aymond used the September 24, 1976 outline as a
121/

speaking aid but did not hand it out. He does not recall

reading the sentence on the outline to the effect that only 3a and

3a (1) were positions consistent with Dow's obligations during the

meeting, FT. Aymond testified that earlier at his deposition

he had said that Dow was told at the September 24, 1976 meeting '

that if it took the position that the contract was valid but there

were alternative sources that were more advantageous and a sus-

pension reeulted, it would be sued. However, he then testified

that he was not certain he actually said this at the meeting
123/

itself. Mr. Aymond stated that a 3b position was not an entire-

ly black or white position. It was a gray area where Consumers

would have to know Dow's state of mind to determine whether it

was a frustration of the purpose of the contract or not.

He went on to state that if Dow had testified that the nuclear
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option was no longer economically attractive to it, he would have

viewed that as a deliberate breach because all of Consumers '

studies showed the project to still retain a significant cost

advantage over the alternatives and Dow couldn't reach a contrary
125/

conclusion in good faith. Mr. Aymond testified that Dow's con-

tractual duty to support Consumers went beyond simply providing

technical data, information and witnesses and required Dow' to

support Consumers ' efforts to complete the project. When

asked what would have happened if Dow had taken a .3b position

and a suspension resulted, Mr. Aymond responded that Consumers

would go to court if its counsel advised it that there was a

reasonable probability of success. He defined " frustration"

as

"a state of mind in which although
'ostensibly proceeding in accordance

with the contract, they might actu-
ally attempt to shoot the project
down." 128/

When asked what " message" he was giving Dow if they took a position

that the contract was valid but no longer advantageous, Mr. Aymond

said:

"I think we indicated that it was
possible that that could result in a
suspension and possible that it could
not. I think we gave the percentages
as 50-50, and I think I did indicate
that if it did result in a suspension
and if their actions were taken in
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frustration of our contractual commitment
for them to support the proicct, that we
would let the courts decide what the li-
abilities were . " 129/ (emphasis supplied)

Finally, when asked whether he viewed a Dow position that the con-

tract was valid but no longer advantageous as a breach, Nr. Aymond

said:

"W' ll, this was something that Mr.e
Potter and I got into at great length ,

during my deposition. And I think that
the question Mr. Olmstead asked me this
morning was a little different than the
one Mr. Potter did when I gave my deposi-
tion in May. I think an awful lot depends
upon the good faith of the parties involved.
And my view is that the economic evaluation
is so clear that nuclear is more attractive
from an economic standpoint that anv posi-
tion that was taken to the contrary would
not be in good f aith. (emphasis supplied)

"on the other hand, re. olmstead today ,

raised other issues in addition to the
economics: the uncertainties, the delays,
the future potential escalations, that do,
I think, raise a question which, if that
were the position that had been taken, I don ' t
know what the answer would be. It could or
could not be one that was in violation of
the contract." 130/

Mr. Youngdahl succinctly stated the " message" given Dow

at the September 24, 1976 meeting, as follows:

Q " Now was it also stated in that meeting
that if Dow took any actions which
frustrated Consumers' ability to finish
the project, that Consumers would sue?"
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A "Well I think the reference was that if
Dow overtly or inadvertently in some
manner frustrated the contract, that it
could well go to the courts. " 131/

(emphasis supplied)

Mr. Falahee testified that Mr. Aymond did not read to Dow

the position of his outline relating to the alleged inconsistency

of 3b and 3c positions with Dow's contractual obligations. Rather,

Mr. Aymond started talking about acts that would be giving " lip

service" to the contract and that it would be necessary to leave
132/

the question up to the courts in this circumstance. In FT.

Falahee's judgment, a 3b position would have been regarded by

Consumers as giving " lip service" to the contract.

Mr. Bacon testified that Mr. Aymond told Dow that if Dow

repudiated the contract, Consumers would regard it as a breach. ,

If Dow did something less than repudiation but it amounted to a

frustration of the purpose of the contract, then it would be for
134/

the courts to resolve. FT . Bacon defined " frustration" to mean:

"If Dow took any action which made it
impossible for us to perform, for example. " 135/

When asked what would have occurred if Dow took the position that

the contract was valid but no longer economically viable, Mr. Bacon

stated:

"I suspect it would be a litigable
issue if reasonable men could differ. " 136/
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Finally, Mr. Bacon stated that the net effect of what Mr. Aymond

said was:

". Look, if you repudiate the. .

contract or if you frustrate its purpose
and we can attribute damages to a breach by
Dow, then we 're going to seek all possible
legal remedies to recover damages. " 137/

CONCLUSION

The statements made to Dow at the September 21, 1976

and September 24, 1976 meetings by Messrs. Falahee and Aymond

clearly went beyond simply stating that if Dow breached or

repudiated the contract, Dow would be sued. Dow was clearly

told that if it took any position that was not supportive of i

the contract and a suspension occurred, Dow would be sued by

Consumers on the ground it could not in good faith reach any

conclusion other than to support the project.

As noted above, Mr. Falahee testified that he

delivered the following message to Dow on September 21, 1976:

[I] f you disagree with us and"
...

think you have a legitimate reason, then
you can take that position, but act care-
fully, because it is a serious nroposition
and it may resul an serious litigation."

(emphasis supplit
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Yhat message was received as testified to by Mr. Nute :

''I want you to get up on the stand and
testify, but vou'd better be careful what
you say because if what you say results in
our construction license beino terminated
and it causes us irreparable financial harm,
we're going to sue you for every Denny."

(emphasis supplied)

The message delivered to Dow by Mr. Aymond on September

24, 1976, as testified to by Mr. Youngdahl, was:

"If Dow overtly or inadvertently in
some manner frustrated the contract, that
it could well go to the courts. "
(emphasis supplied)

Dow properly interpreted the remarks of Messrs. Falahee

and Aymond as a threat that litigation would ensue if its testi-

'mony was not supportive of Consumers and a suspension resulted.

Consumers clearly indicated to Dow that the Michigan Division

position was not " supportive " of the Consumers position and, if
adopted by Dou U.S.A. and suspension resulted, there would be

litigation between the companies.

The meetings of September 21, 1976 and September 24, 1976

focused Dow's attention on the fact that litigation-with Consumers

:as a certainty if there was a suspension or revocation of the con-

struction licenses -- regardless of whether or rot there was any
actual fault on the part of Dow. The strength of these messages
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that Consumers intended to convey and did convey to Dow at these

meetings forced the parties into adversarial positions.

V. THE ROLE OF DOW'S ATTORNEYS IN THE
PREPARATION FOR THE ASLB HEARING
WAS PROPER.

BACKGROUND

To properly assess the role of Dow counsel in the prepara-

tion for the ASLB suspension hearing, the Board must place themselves

in the environment that existed when the Temple testimony prepara-

tion began. Mr. Nute was a member of the Dow negotiating team and

shared that team's nelief that Consumers had misled Dow in 1974

by withholding information about proposed construction delays until

after Dow had executed the 1974 amendments to the contract. '

The team also felt that Consumers (a) had consciously misled Dow

regarding the sale of nuclear fuel rights, (b) was less than candid

about construction delays and the reasons for them, and (c) was

unprepared for negotiating meetings. In FT. Nute's words, the

relationship between Dow and Consumers deteriorated from " compatible"

140/
to " arms-length" between February 1974 and December 1975 and was

141/
" pretty strained " by June 30,.1976. The Aeschliman decision was

handed down in July 1976 and Consumers made no effort to explain

to Dow its implications on the project before the September 13,
142/

1976 meeting. Instead, af ter the Aeschliman decision was handed

143/
down, Consumers rushed to sign a new contract.
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Mr. Nute atte: Med both the September 21, 1976 and September

24, 1976 meetings with Consumers representatives. He heard the

circumstances under which there would be litigation by Consumers

against Dow explained as follows:

A "Well if I said to you, Mr. Olmstead,
I want you to get up on the stand and
testify, but you 'd better be careful
what you say because if what you say
results in our construction license
being terminated and it causes us ir-
reparable financial harm, we 're going
to sue you for every penny. So that
causes you, as I said in my deposition,
to testify with some trepidation. It
would sure be on my mind. " 144/

***

Q "So what , then, made this one so dis-
tinctive? Was it the forewarning or
was it the size of the suit?"

A "Neither one. It was -- what I captured
,in my notes and what Mr. Hanes apparent-

ly caught in his notes - that if your
testimony doesn't -- Well, his said if
your testimony doesn 't support that this
has an economic advantage, or whatever
was in his notes, and that results in
us losing the license, we 're going to
sue you.

"So it went to what they expected from
us in the way of testimony. It wasn't
just get up there and testify as to
what your feelings are; it was the
testimony had to be positive. " 145/

***

"The point I'm trying to make is they
had asked us on at least two or three
occasions if we were going to breach
the contract and we said No, it 's a
valid contract. It's a valid contract
but we don 't think it is of any --
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there is a probability or possibility
that it's going to be of any benefit to
us, we 're going to live up to our con-
tractual obligations.

"And they said to us if you get up there
and say that and that results in the li-
conse being suspended, we 're going to sue
you. And to me that 's going to have a --
well at that time I thought that's going
to have an attempt to influence what you're
going to say, and that 's why I wrote,
' pretty damn close to blackmail' . " 146/

Mr. Nute became greatly concerned after Consumers explained

to Dow the circumstances under which Consumers would sue Dow and

sought legal advice concerning the strength of Consumers ' position

from outside counsel. He testified as follows:

Q "Did Mr. Friedman tell you that he had
a concern?"

A 'Tes."

'
Q "What was that concern?"

A "Well, it was more I guess along the lines
of what I indicated yesterday, that there
were cases, lines of cases, that dealt
with the problem of somebody being in-
volved in a contractual situation with
another party and through testimony or
through some action trying to sabotage
a license that was needed to perform
that contract.

"And if I recall correctly, some of
those cases went to what was the in-
tent of the party in his action or
his testimony.
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Q "Did you have occasion to ask Mr.
Friedman, or did Mr. Hanes address
the Board concerning whether the
provision of Mr. Temple as a witness
in the proceeding which might result
in a suspension of the license if he
testified truthfully would fall into
that category of cases where liability
might attach?"

A "Well, number one, I don't know whether
Mr. Hanes did. Number two, we may have
discussed that. I think the concern
was more along the lines of then
you 're getting into what was the in-
tent of the party when he testified,
and that was a concern, not so much
with liability -- well, yeah, it was
concerned with liability; it's a
question of when you have that kind
of an issue, quite obviously you're
not going to -- if you want to defend
it, you 're not going to win on a
summary ludament argument, you 're
going to go throuch a lenathy pro-
lonced litigation with a lot of_
discovery and what was in somebody's i

mind and what was written down. And
jf I can put it in the vernacular,
it's a crap shoot, and that's what
we're vorried about." 14 7 / *
(emphasis supplied)

*Mr. Nute's concerns were well-founded.
Consumers itself had received legal advice
on September 23, 1976 to the effect that
"any thing that Dow says or does that has the
foreseeable result of a denial of Consumers'
permit would be subject to scrutiny as a
breach of this implied promise". (Tr. 52,189)
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Faced with the possibility of massive litigation if Dow did not

"act very carefully", Dow adopted the following approach in the

preparation of the Temple testimony:

O "Did Mr. Wessel suggest a way that you
could build a record to protect yourself

'

against such a contingency?"

A "I thinx in our discussions af ter this
point we decided we would make very sure
that everything that was in the testi-
mony was something that Consumers wanted
in there and understood the imolications
of before they put it in there to make
sure that they really understood vinat
they were saying, so they couldn't come
back later and say we sandbaaged them
or held out or something like that. " 148/
(emphasis suppliad)

* * *

Q "But under the ' duty to support ' clause
of the contract, Dow didn ' t want to
volunteer anything. Is that correct?" '

A "We didn't want to volunteer anything be-
cause we 'd been threatened by Mr. Aymond
that if we volunteered too much we might
be f acing a lawsuit. So we wanted to make
sure that it was very, very clear in our
notc s and to Consumers that everything
the: asked us for, they understood the
sigaificance of it and that they wanted
it. " 14 9/

* * *

Q "Is this the reason that you drafted that
testimony in the third person?"

A "It could have been, yeah. I know it was
at the request of Milt."

Q "And can you think of any other reason
you would have drafted it in the third
person?"
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A "No. Well, this reflects the concern
we always had that Consumers would
later come back and say we volunteered
something and that was the basis for
the license being lost and they were
going to sue us. That was our concern
throughout, my concern particularly. " 150/

Q "So that it was not in Dow's strategy
to say 'Here is some additional in-
formation we think will make the
testimony clearer ' ? "

A "No, because I thought they had pretty
much everything they needed after the
October 5th draft and the October 12th.
If they wanted more and asked for it,
they would have oc hten it. But it
had to be clear that they asked for
it, and we weren't trying to stick
something in there that could later
come back to haunt us in a lawsuit.

"In other words, if they could have
later said 'Well, we wouldn 't have
put that in there, but you insisted
and you knew vihat would happen if ,

that was in there, we 'd lose the
license.' That was the kind of
thing that we were concerned about. " 151/

***

Q "Now, have you previously testified
here that it was in effect a Dow
tactic to have Consumers Power Company
draft the testimony for you so that
Dow wouldn't appear to be volunteer-
ing anything that Consumers didn't
want?"

A "No, somebody may have asked me that
but I didn't say that's what it was, I
said my purpose was to make sure the
notes reflected that they understood
everything they got from us and wanted
it and wanted it in the testimony so
they wouldn't later go back against us
and say, you know, we pushed to have
that in there knowing that the result
would be suspension of the license. " 152/

1301 124

- 49 -



Mr. Wessel came to the testimony preparation period with

prior experience in the Dow-Consumers relationship although he was

153/
not intimately involved in the contract negotiations. He saw

frustration, unhappine ss , dissatisfaction and even distrust grow
154/

between the parties as time progressed from 1973 to 1976.

Mr. Wessel saw the possibility of litigation by Consumers against

Dow long before the threat was made explicit in the September 21,

1976 and September 24, 1976 meetings. When Mr. Wessel heard

from Mr. Nute what had transpired at the September 21, 1976 and

September 24, 1976 meetings, he became concerned because the

implicit threat had become explicit and the nature of the threat

had changed from a threat of a lawsuit if there was an outright

breach of the contract by Dow to:

'
that if Dow didn 't act in the"

...

procecding in a way which supported Consumers,
not just if Dow didn 't [ sic) breach the contract
but if Dow didn't act in a way which supported
Consumers, there was at least a $600 million
lawsuit, and that didn 't saem to be the limit
of what they might sue for. " 156 /

Mr. Wessel viewed Mr. Bacon and Mr. Renfrow (and later Mr. Rosso)

as adversaries who were attempting to conduct " free discovery" of

Dow's negotiating positions and of in#6rmation to buttress Consumers'

position in subsequent litigation against Dow.

FT. Wessel, who worked with FT. Nute in the preparation

for the ASLB hearing, was more concerned with Dow's offensive

posture vis-a-vis Consumers (i.e., a possible "best ef forts " claim
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against Consumers) than was Mr. Nute, who was primar ly concernedi

over possible Dow liability to Consumers for events that occurred

in the ASLB hearing. However, Mr. Wessel also shared Mr. Nute's

concerns over possible liability to Consumers. Mr . Wessel 's

concerns, as the preparation for the hearing began, included:

Q "And in that regara what was your
primary concern?"

A "I wanted to avoid doing anything
which would prejudice Dow's suit, if
it ever brought one, against Consumers.
I wanted to avoid doing anything w hich
would give Consumers some opportunity
for saying: Dow, you have violated
your rights, and either sue us first,
or counterclaim, or do something of
the same character." 159/

***

Q "You did not want to put a Dow witness i

on as your own witness?"

A "That's correct."

Q "And this is consistent with the same
strategy that you had with the Dow
non-party position?"

A "Yes, it's the sama strategy of not
being in a position where we could be
charged with having taken action which
might have a negative effect upon the
license." 160/

** *

Q "Did that concern that you indicate
in your answer to the questions I
posed on page 57 of your deposition,
did that concern affect your decision
as to whether to be a party or not to
be a party in the -- ?"
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A "I'm sure that was one of the reasons
that I came to the conclusion that that
position was by far the best one to take,
but it was by no means the only reason
for it."

Q "Okay. What other reasons were there for
Dow's non-pa:cty status?"

A "Their relationship with Consumers. By
not being a volunteer and having Consum?.rs
call the shots we would not be in a posi-
tion where Consumers could say that what
we did had hurt them. " 161/

It is against this backdrop of events and circumstances,

which by September 29, 1976 had polarized the parties into ad-

versarial positions, that the role of Dow counsel in the ASLB

suspension hearing preparatien must be viewed. We will now

separately analyze the " issues" raised regarding the conduct of

Dow counsel,

i

A. TIIERE WAS NOTIIING IMPROPER IN DOW'S
DECISION TO TAKE THE LEGAL POSITION
THAT IT WAS NO LONGER A PARTY TO THE
NRC PROCEEDINGS AFTER AN ORDER HAD
BEEN ENTERED BY THE U. S. COUItT OF
APPEALS FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
CIRCUIT DISMISSING IT AS AN INTERVENOR
IN THE THEN PENDING PROCEEDINGS.

Concerning the decision by Dow to take the position that

it was no longer a party to the NRC proceedings, Mr. Wessel stated

as follows:
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Q "To the best of your recollection, how
did Dow determine not to participate as
a party in the NRC proceeding following
the Court of Appeals remand?

"Maybe I should preface it. Was that a
deliberate choice?"

A "Ye s . "

Q "And when was that choice made?"

A "Some time following the Court of Appeals
romand. Probably in September, when the
clear inconsistency between the positions
of Consumers and Dow in so many respects be-
came apparent and the danger of Dow taking
action in t; e litigation as a party which
might somehow give Consumers a claim
against Dow. I think I was the person
to first suggest that we ought not to
in any way act as a party but rather
act as a witness." 162/

Mr. Wessel went on to explain that, by taking the position that

'Dow was no longer a party, Dow could require Consumers to " call
163/

the shots" and avoid "a position where Consumers could say
164/

that what we did had hurt them". Mr. Wessel testified that

he recommended that Dow take the position that it was not a party

to the NRC proceedings before the meetings with Consumers of

September 21, 1976 and September 24, 1976 because he recognized

the general legal obligation not to frustrate a contract 's per-

formance and wanted to avoid Dow being placed in a position where

Consumers could make such a claim. This position became even

more important when Consumers told Dow that litigation would follow

if Dow's testimony was not supportive of Consumers and a suspension
166/

followed.
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The Code of Professional Responsibility provides, in part,

as follows:

CANON 7

A Lawyer Should Represent a Client
Zealously Within the Bounds

of the Law

ETIIICAL CONSIDERATIONS

* +*

Duty of the Lawyer to a Client

"EC 7-4 The advocate may urge any permissible
construction of the law favorable to his client,
without regard to his professional opinion as to
the likelihood that the construction will ulti-
mately prevail. His conduct is viithin the bounds
of th e law, and therefore permissible, if the
position taken is supported by .aw or is sup-
portable by a good faith aroumont for an ex-
tension, modification or reversai of the law.
However, a lawyer is not justified in asserting
a position in litigation that is frivolous. "

i
* **

"EC 7-15 The nature and purpose of proceedings
before administrative agencies vary widely.
The proceedings may be legislati'fe or qucci-
judicial, or a combination of both. Tb.ey may
be ex parte in character, in which event they
may originate either at the instance of the
agency or upon motion of an interestco party.
The scope of an inquiry may be purely investi-
gative or it may be truly adversary lcoking
toward the adjudication of specific rights of
a party or of classes of parties. The fore-
going are but examples of some of the types
of proceedings conducted by administrative
agencies. A lawyer appearing before an ad-
minit trative acency, regardless of the nature
of the proceedina it is conductina, has the
continuing duty to advance the cause of his
client within the bounds of the law. "

(emphasis supplied)
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The position advocated by Mr. Wessel that Dow was not a

party was clearly "a permissible construction of the law" in view

of Dow's earlier dismissal as an Intervenor by the U. S. Court of

Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit. The position was

taken for compelling reasons to protect Dow and reduce its exposure

to threatened litigation. The position was openly taken- and

advocated with no intent to obstrust the flow of any information

to the Board. As stated by Mr. Wessel:

Q "So that, in essence by taking the,

position that you were a non-party, you
relieved yourself of obligations to the
Hearing Board, is that correct?"

A "Well I say the answer to that is yes,
but that was not the purpose of taking
that position and we speci fically made
it clear when we naid we were not a
party in the bacinnina of the hearina i

that we would do whatever the Board
wanted without any subpoena or di-
rection or what have you. So that
position back in September 4:d through
December, or throuch Novembt of not,

beina a party had nothing to do with
the Board. " 167/

(emphasis supplied)

*/ Indeed, Mr. Wessel sent a letter dated
November 22, 1976 to the Board advis-
ing them of Dow's position.
(Vol . V , Tab 37) 1301 130
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CONCLUSION

There clearly was no impropriety in Dow counsel's decision

to take the position that Dow was not a party. Dow was told that

it would be sued if its testimony was not supportive of Consumers

and a suspension resulted. Mr. Wessel was Dow's counsel and, as

such, sought a way to protect it from the threatened litigation

or to minimize the exposure to that threat. Mr. Wessel was trying

to avoid a claim charging Dow ". . . with having taken action which
168/

might have a negative effect upon the license". The Dow

position that it was not a party was openly taken with no intent

to interdict the flow of any information to the Board.

B. DOW HAD NO DUTY TO ADVISE CONSUMERS
COUNSEL MESSRS. RENFROW AND ROSSO
TIIAT CONSUMERS HAD TIIREATENED DOW WITII ,

LITIGATION IF TIIE CONSTRUCTION LICENSES
WERE SUSPERDED DUE TO THE FAILURE OF
DOW TO POSITIVELY SUPPORT CONSUMERS '
POSITION IN THE SUSPENSION PROCEEDING.

Questioning of Dow counscl Messrs. Nute, Hancs and

Wessel during the most recent hearing implies that it may be

contended that Dow counsel had some " duty" to advise consumers

counsel that their own client, consumers, had threatened Dow

with litigation. There clearly was no such " duty". Messrs. Nute,

Hanes and Wessel were representing Dow, not Consumers. More-

over, as Mr. Nute testified at the hearing, he assumed that Mr.

Renfrow and Mr. Dacon advised Mr. Rosso of what was said during
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the September 21, 1976 meeting by IT. Faldlee and that FT. Bacon

told Mr. Renfrow and Mr. Rosso what was said during the Septer6er

24, 1976 meeting by Mr. Aymond.

Even though there was no duty to advise Consumers counsel

of what their client had said to Dow (particularly when one of the

counsel attended the same meeting), the evidence adduced at the

hearing clearly discloses that either Mr. Renfrow or Mr. Renfrow

and FT. Rosso were told by Dow that it had been threatened with

litigation by Consumers. Thus, FT. Nute's notes of the September

21, 1976 meeting disclose that FT. Nute told Mr. Renfrow that

Consumers was being inconsistent by " threatening a massive lawsuit

on one hand if Dow takes a hast, position, yet demanding immediate

statement of position on the other hand". FT. Nute so testified

at the hearing. He also testified that the slide or "overhe ad " i

used during the corporate review presentation to the U.S. A. Board

relating to the threat of the $600 n.illion lawsuit by Consumers

was shown to FT. Renfrow during the Temple testimony preparation

period. Finally, Mr. Rosso testified diat FT. Wessel was con-

tinually expressing concern that Consumers would come back and sue

173/Dow if there was some misstep by Dow that caused a suspension.

CONCLUSION

There was no " duty" requiring Dow counsel to advise

Consumers counsel that their own client had threatened Dow with
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litigation, particularly in view of the fact that Mr. Renfrow was

in attendance at the September 21, 1976 meeting. Although no such

" duty " existed, it is clear that both Mr. Renfrow and Mr. Rosso

or Mr. Renfrow alone were told on more than one occasion that Dow

had been threatened with litigation by Consumers.

C. DOW HAD NO DUTY TO ADVISE CONSUMERS
COUNSEL RENFROW AND ROSSO THAT CONSUMERS
COUNSEL RENFROW HAD SUGGESTED, DURING
THE COURSE OF A SEPTEMBER 21, 1976
MEETING WITH DOW, THAT A DOW WITNESS
BE USED WHO WAS NOT FULL'I KNOWLEDGE-
ABLE OF THE DOW-CONSUMERS RELATIONSHIP .

As noted in Argument 5 B, supra, Consumers counsel in

the most recent hearing pursued a line of questioning with Dow

counsel Messrs. Nute, Hanes and Wessel that causes Dow to believe
,

that it may be contended that Dow owed some " duty " to Con sumc rs

counsel Messrs. Renfrow and Rosso to advise them that Consumers

had suggested the use of a Dow witness who was not fully knowledge-

able of the Dow-Consumers relationship. Such an argument is even

more untenable than the pr.ssible contention that there was a "d uty "

to disclose the threat of litigation to Consumers counsel. Here,

it was Consumers counsel, Mr. Renfrow himself, who made the state-

ment regarding the Dow witness. Moreover, even if a " duty" existed

to advise Mr. Renfrow and Mr. Rosso that Mr. Renfrow made a sug-

gestion that a less than fully knowledgeable witness be used, both
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Mr. Renfrow and Mr. Rosso were told this fact during the November

1, 1976 meeting when Mr. Wessel told them that the Dow Board"
...

got the impression that Consumers Power wanted Dow to produce a

witness that didn ' t know what had gone on. "

CONCLUSION

There was no " duty" to advise Mr. Renfrow and Mr. Rosso

that Consumers counsel had suggested the use of a witness who was

not fully knowledgeable of the Dow-Consumers relationship. Even

though no such " duty" existed, both Mr. Renfrow and Mr. Rosso

were told that Dow had the impression that Consumers wanted a

Dow witness who was not fully knowledgeable,

i

D. THE COliDUCT OF DON COUNSEL DID I;OT

CREATE THE IMPRESSION THAT CONSUMERS
ALOIE HAD PREPARED THE TEMPLE TESTI-
MONY.

Mr. Renfrow testified that he felt that the effect of

the testimony of Mr. Temple as delivered and some comments to the

Board by Mr. Wessel concerning how the testimony was prepared may

have misled the Board into believing that Consumers alone T.ad

prepared the testimony and had " manipulated" Dow into complying

.~n ,-
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with its desires regarding the content of that testimony.

Mr. Renfrow stated that all the information relevant to the Dow
176/

corporate position was given to the ASLB but the Board may

have been misled as to how the Temple testimony was in fact pre-
177/

pared. However, when asked to point out the specific points

testified to by Mr. Temple or the comments made by Mr. Wessel

that Mr. Renfrow was relying on, he was unable to do so.

On this point, Mr. Rosso testified as follows:

BY MR. DAMBLY:

Q "Mr. Renfrow has testified that he
thought the statements by Mr. Wessel
made at the hearings and Mr. Temple 's
testimony created the impression that
Dow had wanted initially the Michigan
Division position and I guess Mr.
Temple 's personal views to go into i

the testimony and Consumers Power
had wanted to keep them out and it
fought to keep them out. Does that
comply with your impression of what
Mr. Wessel's statements and Mr.
Temple's testimony conveyed to
the Board during the suspension
hearing?"

A "Oh, I don 't know what they conveyed
to the Board. My impression is some-
vihat different than -- if that 's what
Rex said, my impression is somewhat
different."

CHAIRMAN MILLER: "Without commenting
upon what Rex or any other witness
said, what is your best recollec-
tion?"

1301 135

- 60 -



THE WITNESS: "My best recollection is
that Milton washed his hands of
the whole thing and made some
vague statements about Rosso and
Renfrow acted in this great way,
which was supposed to refer, I
guess, to some -- to the canons
of ethics or something like that
but he really didn't help us any,
he just sort of washed his har.ds
of the whole thing.

"And I don 't think that
they -- I don ' t Imow that they
misled the Board in any way, I
just -- "

CHAIRMAN MILLER: " Don 't worry about
the Board being misled, tell us
what you observed and v, hat your
best recollection is."

THE WITNESS: "That's it. They just
sort of washed their hands and
said go talk to them, not us. 179/

(emphasis supplied)
i

Thus, the only Consumers witness to testify that the Board

may have been misled by Dow counsel concerning Dow's involvement

in the preparation of the Temple testimony was Mr. Renfrow and

he was unable to identify the statements by either Mr. Temple or

Mr. Wessel that he was relying on. Mr. Rosso did not agree with

Mr. Renfrow's judgment and did not think Dow had misled the Board

in any way.
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All parties agreed that the Temple testimony as filed

with the Board was proper 2y prepared and was complete in its

oxposition of the Dow corporate position. Since the testimony

was properly prepared, the relative degree of involvement of Dow

and Consumers in the preparation of that testimony should be of
*/

little importance. The record amply demonstrates that Dow feared

it would be sued if the license was suspended and the suspension

could somehow be claimed to be due to a failure of Dow to be

supportive of Consumers in the hearings. For this reason, Dow

time and again took steps to insure that the testimony as given

by Mr. Temple was what Consumers wanted and was responsive to

their questions.

CONCLUSION '

The conduct of Dow counsel was not improper in any respect

in insuring that the testimony of Mr. Temple was accurate and was

what Consumers wanted. They did not create the impression that

Consumers alone was involved in preparing Mr. Temple 's testimony.

*/ In any event, Dow's involvement in the
preparation of Mr. Temple's testimony
was fully explained to the Board at
the time of the suspension hearing.
(Tr. 478-502; 661-G80)
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E. DOW COUNSEL DID NOT EMBELLISH UPON
AND BROADEN THE DOW CHEMICAL USA
DECISION AS IT WAS STATED BY MR.
OREFFICE ON SEPTEMBER 27, 1976.

During the testimony of Mr. Temple, the Board asked a

question indicating a concern that the Dow USA Board decision may

have been " expanded a little" in the course of the preparation of

the draft testimony outlines. Dow believes that the record

amply demonstrates that the precise content of the Dow USA Board

decision was accurately communicated to the ASLB in the Temple

testimony.

Mr. Oreffice testified that the elements of the Dow USA

Board clecision were (a) based on a cost of $1.67 billion and a
March 1982 c..npletion date, the project uas still the best economic

i

alternative, (2) any further delays or cost increases could make

a difference, (3) Dow should keep its options open.

The Dow USA Board decision as reported in the written

direct Temple testimony was as follows:

"A further review of the project and
the contracts between the parties was
commenced in August 1976, as a direct
result of the Court of Appeals decision
on July 21, 1976, and the new projected
capital cost of the project of
$1,670,000,000 given to me by telephone
on August 5, 1976. This last review,
which was concluded in September of
1976, resulted in a conclusion that
at the present time circumstances
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have not changed sufficiently to call
for a modification of Dow's commitment
to nuclear produced steam to be sup-
plied by Consumers Power in March of
1982. Under the present circumstances
as known to Dow, the nuclear alterna-
tive remains the most attractive one,
economically. Further, the matter
will be kept under continuous review
and Dow will keep all of its options
open." (emphasis supplied)

CONCLUSION

The Dow USA Board decision as made by the Dow USA Board on

September 27, 1976 was fully and accurately reported in the Temple

direct testimony without expansion or embellishment by Dow counsel.

VI. THE DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 13R. TEMPLE WAS
PROPERLY PREPARED EVEN THOUGH IT DID
NOT CONTAIN A REFEIENCE TO THE MICHIGAN '

DIVISION RECOFMENDATION.

The testimony at the hearing disclosed that counsel for

Consumers were initially inclined to include a discussion of the

Michigan Division position and the reasons for it in the direct

testimony of Mr. Temple. While both Mr. Renfrow and Mr. Rosso

were convinced that the Michigan Division position was immaterial

in view of the corporate review and the Dow USA Board decision,

Mr. Renfrow thought that it should be included in the direct

testimony for tactical reasons. Both Mr. Nute and Mr. Wessel

were convinced that the Michigan Division position was both ir-
183/

relevant and immaterial. They argued that it should not be
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included in the direct testimony for reasons best stated by Mr.

Wessel:

CHAIRMAN MILLER: "So it 's really very
difficult to say anything is abso-
lutely immaterial, including sub-
sequent repairs because of certain
exceptions which have developed.
Isn't that true, under the law of
evidence?"

THE WITNESS: "It is true, and it is an
argument and I don't know the extent
to v.hich I had any confidence that
the argument would be successful,
although I thought it was a valid
argtunent to make, and I wrote up
a two-page statement arguing that
it wasn't material. But it was at
least a responsible, credible argu-
ment to be made wnich might be
successful and if it was not success-
ful, then it would have been forceu
out of Dow and we wouldn 't have
volunteered it and we woulon't be

,

in trouble."

CHAIRMAN MILLER: "So far as the Board
was concerned, isn't it fair for
us to infer that respectable legal
argument could be made both ways on
that question? "

TH1' WITNESS: "fes, clearly."

CHAIRMAN MILLER: "All right. Thank you. "

THE WITNESS: "And I think I was always
aware of the strong possibility-
that Pr. Cherry, the moment he
heard such a statement, would fight
like heck to get to the information.

"But remember that a verv substantial
part of my concern was that it not be
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produced by Dow in a way which
Consumers cou.ld then say, You did
this deliberately to cet us,' or
'You sandbaaqcd us, ' or something
l ike th a t. " Jp4/
(emphasis supplied)

Dow counsel urged that the Michigan Division position

not be included in the direct testimony at the septenber 29, 1976

meeting with Messrs. Bacon and Renfrow. However, their view

did not then prevail and Moscrs. Bacon and Renfrow continued to

insist that it be included for tactical reasons, giving Dow a

revised outline which included a demand for information on the
186/*

Michigan Division position and the reasons for it. Subsequent-

ly, between October 13, 1976 and October 17, 1976, Messrs. Miller,

Rosso and Renfrow discussed the matter further and decided to pro-

serve the argument on materiality by not including the Michigan >

*/ Mr. Wessel's memorandum of December 4, 1976
states, in part:

"He (Rosso) then said what his position had
been (that the underlying Dow reasoning was
irrelevant to the final action decision)
and that this had been the Dow position. I
said it indeed had been the original Dou
position, but that it had been everruled
by Mr. Renfrow and Mr. Bacon at the first
conference I attended with them. "

Thus, Mr. Weasel's memorandum accurately
stated the status of the matter at the con-
clusion of the September 29, 1976 meeting.
The decision not to include the Michigan
Division position in the October 22, 1976
draft of testimony prepared by Consumers
was made by Consumers before the draft was
mailed to Dow. 187/
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188/*
Division position in the direct Temple testimony.

*/ Mr. Nute 's memorandum of December 2, 1976
states in part:

" Dave said he believed that Dow had
requested that the Corporate Review
Michigan Division decision discus-
sion be lef t out of Temple 's testi-
many. He said he thought that it
was not Censumers that had decided
to leave the Michigan Division de-
cis ion out of Temple 's testimony. "

* * *

"I further told Dave that in my
opinion, the decinion to leave out
testimony en the Division Review
was Consumers' idea." i

(emphasis supplied)

Mr. Nute's memorandum is correct. The
testimony showed that the idea of leaving
out the Michigan Division position origi-
nated with Dow. The final decision to
leave it out was made by Consumers some-
tine before it delivered the october 22,
1976 draft to Dow. Mr. Rosso's comment
to Mr. Nute speaks to the " decision" to
leave the Michigan Division position out
of the Temple testimony. Mr. Nute's
comment correctly responds that the
" decision " was Consumers ' .
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The decision not to include a discussion of the Michigan

Division position in the direct testimony of Mr. Temple due to its

immateriality was clearly proper. Not onc attorney who appeared

before the Board in this hearing made any claim that the Michigan

Division position was in fact material. Viewed against the

definition of materiality set out in North Anna Power Station,

Units 1 and 2, NRC Decisions # 30,121) (i.e., "sdiether a reason-

able staff member would, or should, consider it in reaching a

conclusion or in determining a course of action"), there clearly

was no need to disclose a division position that was not adopted

by the Dow USA Boarf. The ASLAB, in its decision of February 14,

1978, did not deem the Michigan Division position to be material.

There, it said:

"The evidence adduced thus far, which '

appears to be unusually comprehensive, can
be fairly summarized as follows: some
officials in thn local Dow management view
Midland as a losina proposition and would
abandon it, but the senior cornorate offi-
cors have decidad, subiect to reconsideration
if circumstances chance, that Dow will honor
the contract to buy steam from Midland. not-
with stand ing that intervening events have
rendared its terms far 3 css attractive to
Dow than thev oriainally ware.

"For our purposes, then, that portion
of the demand for Midlend power attributable
to Dow is a aiven. " 18 9/
(emphasis supplied)
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Notwithstanding the above, the Michigan Division position

was clearly set out in the Dow notes of the September 13, 1976

negotiating meeting. These notes were made available by Dow to

Consumers on October 18, 1976 and were subsequently made avail-

able to both the Intervenors and the Staff by Consumers on

November 3, 1976 in Jackson, Michigan. Neither the Intervonora

nor the Staff chose to avail themselves of this documentary

disclosu:e.

CONCLUS TON

There clearly was no impropriety in not discussing the

Michigan Division position in the direct testimony of Mr. Temple,

i

VII. MR. TEMPLE WAS IN FACT DOW'S MOST
I;NOWLEDGEABLE WITNESS EVEN TIIOUCII

IIE DID NOT TAKE PART IN THE DOW
CIIEMICAL USA BOARD DELIBEIUsTIONS
TIIAT TOOI; PLACE II@'EDIATELY FOLTDW-

ING TIIE PRESElfI'ATION BY THE REVIEW
TEAM.

During the course of the hearing, counsel for the Staff

raised the question of whether Mr. Temple was in fact Dow's most

knowledgeable witness in view of the fact that he did not par-

ticipate in the Dow USA Board deliberations following the review

team's presentation. Dow believes that e.:. . Temple was, indeed,

its most knowledgeable witness.
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In order to resolve this question, it must be determined

why a Dow witness was to be called at all. The Aeschliman decision

called for testimony on "the changed circumstances regarding Dow's

need for process steam and the intended continued operation of

Dow's fossil-fueled generating facilities". On this question,

Mr. Temple was clearly the most knowledgeable Dow witness. IIe

was the General Manager of the Dow Division that would ultimately

receive the steam from the nuclear plant and had been involved

in the negotiations with Consumers over contract changes since
192/

1973. When he took the stand, he was Dow's most knowledgeable

witness regarding what the Michigan Division 's position had been
193/

and the factors that led up to it. Wnile he had not partici-
194/

pated in the review team's work or the deliberations of the

195/Dow USA Board, he was present throughout the review team's i

presentation to the Dow USA Board on September 27, 1976 and was

familiar with the same facts presented to the Dow USA Board.

The Dow USA Board then dellberated as follows:

(BY MR. CIIARNOFF)

Q "Mr. Oreffice, c,oing back to the meeting
of the Dow USA Board on September 27th,
could you review with me, with us, ex-
actly what took place in the private
meeting that the Dow USA Board had
after the presentation by the reviou
group?"

A "Oh, as I recall, it was a very short
meeting, probably -- my guess is ten
minutes, fifteen minutes, because
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essentially we had all heard the conclu-
sions of the review group and there was
unanimous agreement that the conclusions
were correct, that given the same capital
and timing that the proper thing was to
go on with the Consumers ' contract and
continue to negotiate a better contract,
but that the nuclear alternative was still
the best alternative. "

Q "Was there any particular focus on any
particular element of that presenta-
tion by the review group?"

A "I don't recall any, no."

Q "It was basically a review of the rela-
tive economics of the nuclear alternative?"

A "Well, I remember walkir.g out of there,
walking out of the meeting with the
whole review board with the feeling on
my part that the conclusion vould be
what we reached, and essentially as
I gathered the guys -- I said essentially,
'Does anybody disagree with this? What
thoughts does anybody have? '

,

"And thef. 's why it was such a nhort ment-
ing, because everybodv had heard the name
data and overybody essentially aareed. " 197/
(emphasis supplied)

Thus, the deliberations of the Dow USA Board consisted simply in

determining whether there was unanimity of opinion in favor of the

review team recommendation. No new subject matter was discussed

that had not been raised in the review team presentation to the

Dow USA Board -- all of which Mr. Temple had heard.
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CONCLUSION

Mr. Temple was Dow's most knowledgeable witness on the

issue outlined by the Aeschliman decision, for which a Dow witness

had to be called. While he did not take part in the Dow USA Board

deliberations, nothing occurred in those deliberations other than

determining whether there was agreement on the recommendation made

by the review team. Mr. Temple, like the Dow USA Board, had heard

the review team presentation and its recommendation. He heard the

Dow USA Board decision. No other Dow witness was more knowledge-

able. No review team member or Dow USA Board member was as close

to the project as Mr. Temple or possessed his detailed knowledge

of it.

i

VIII. MR. TEMPLE WAS ACTIVELY IINOLVED IN
THE PREPARATION OF HIS TESTIMONY AND
IT WAS IN FACT HTS TESTI!O!N.

During the hearing, the Board raised the question why

Mr. Temple did not himself prepare his own testimony without th e
198/

aid of counsel. Mr. Nute testified that, based on his ex-

perience before administrative agencies, it was accepted practice

for lawyers to work with the witness in preparing question and

answer format written testimony. Mr. Rosso concurred in Mr.

Nute's understanding of this practice.
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The testimony at the hearing clearly showed that Mr.

Temple was actively involved in the preparation of his testimony

and that it was in fact his testimony. Mr. Nute testified that

Mr. Temple eas involved in the preparation of both the October 6,

1976 draft outline a ' the October 29, 1976 draf t of testimony.

He was also involved in the preparation of the final written
202/

testimony that was submitted to the Board.

Mr. Temple testified that he reviewed the October 6,

1976 draft outline and made changes to it before it was sent to
203/

Consumers. He reviewed the October 22, 1976 draft of testimony

prepared by consumers and noted those sections he olajected to as

204/
erroneous. Concerning his overall involvement in the prepara-

tion of the testimony, Mr. Temple said:

i

Q "I believe you told us in your deposi-
tion that the form your testimony took
was decided by attorneys. Is that
correct?"

A "That 's my understanding. "

Q "And that you had minor involvement
in that?"

A "By the form, I'm talking about the
question-and-answar form. That's my
recollection."

Q "Okay . "

"Did you feel you had a major involve-
ment concerning the scope of the
te stimony ? "

.
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A "In its final form, I felt I had the
final say or I wouldn't sign it."

Q "On the scope of the testimonv?"

A '*Y e s . "

Q "So that they asked the questions that
you wanted asked?"

A "No, I approved of the questions that
they had put together as being the
basis for the testimony. I d idn ' t

feel that, with regard to the Dow
corporate position, that I had , as
I recall it anyway, any need to in-
corporate, other than vihat the attorneys
had worked up for weeks to put together. " 205/
(emphasis supplied)

CONCLUSION

Mr. Temple was actively involved in the preparation of

*his own testimony and it was in fact his testimony.

IX. TIIERE WAS NOTIIING IMPROPER IN DON'S
FAILURE TO ADVISE TIIE ASLB OF CONSUI* IRS '
TIIREAT TO SUE DOW IF THE LICENSES WERE
SUSPENDED DUE TO DOW'S FAILURE TO POSI-
TIVELY SUPPORT CONSUbiERS' POSITION IN
THE SUSPENSION IIEARINGS.

During the hearing, the Staff raised the question why

Dow did not advise the ASLB of Consumers' threat to sue Dow if

the Dow testimony was not supportive of Consumers ' position in
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206/
the suspension hearing. Mr. Nute responded:

A "I felt the first thing I should do
is get an accurate legal analysis of
whether Consumers had a basis to state
what they did, whether they were on
firm legal ground when they said that
or not. And I viewed that as the
fi.rst thing that I had to do, and I
went about doing that. "

Q "And what did you find out?"

A "I found out that there 'tre cases
from Miich you could imply that we
have an obligation not to sabotage
their attempts to get a license;
that there was enouah there that
they could get past a summary judo-
ment test and we'd be involved in
maior litiaation." (emphasis supplied)

Q "That 's not quite what I asked you
about, sabotage. I'm taking your
own analysis here, the naked threat
that if the testimony was not sup- i

portive, not just if you went too far
and not if you sabotaged, but if it
was not supportive, and I'm asking
you in the context of what I under-
stood to be your conception of some
contractual clause which imposed
certain obligations upon Dow, what
about that?"

A "I didn 't view it in terms of the
contractual clause which imposed those
obligationu on Dow, but I looked at just
plain contract law, and there are cases
dealing with this question of what is
required by ' support,' and some of those
cases go to the intent of the party in
their testimony, and testifying that
where they didn't support.
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"In other words if the intent behind
that testimony was to purposelv sabo-
tage the proiect, then the party who
was losing its license could sue and
successfully litigate. So it act
down to a question of intent, and
that 's the legal conclusion that I
came to. " 207/ (emphasis supplied)

Q "Well, now, what if the facts as you
analyzed the law were both accurate and
matters which could be significant to a
trier of fact such as the Licensing
Board? What does your analysis indicate
as to potential duties of Dow or any
other party?"

A "I didn 't reach that point of analysis,
what our duties were to the Board at
that point because I didn 't know how
this whole thing was going to come
before the Board or what shape the
hearing was going to h1 at this point. "

Q "Well, you had a clue, didn't you, that
there was going to be some effort possi-
bly to finesse certain matters? Didn't i

that give you some kind of a guide as
to what was at least contemplated?"

A "I'm sorry, I didn 't -- I didn 't know
how the hearing was going to take place,
what our function was going to be in it,
what kind of contacts we would have with
the Staff before that. I hadn 't reached
all those questions yet." 208/

***

"I interpreted it one way. I didn't
know if I was right. That was it.
There was further discussion after
that. I mean, I was just notifying
everybody.

"I guess it was an impression. I couldn't
quite believe what I heard, And then,
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again, I didn't know whether I was re-
acting too strongly to it or not, and
I wanted to find that out by talking
to other people. " 209/

Shortly after the threats were made to Dow, the Dow USA

Board met on September 27, 1976 and heard the review team presen-

tation which included the information that Dow had been threatened
210/

by Consumers. As Mr. Oreffice testified:

osaentially we had all heard the"
...

conclusions of the review group and
there was unanimous agreement that
the conclusions were correct, that
given the sarce capital and timing
that the proper thing was to go on
with the Consumers ' contract and
continue to negotiate a better con-
tract, but that the nuclear alterna-
tive was still the best alternative. "

Q "Was there any particular focus on i

any particular element of that pre-
sentation by the review group?"

A "I don 't recall any, no."

Q "It was basically a review of the
relative economics of the nuclear
alternative? "

A "Well, I remember walking out of there,
walking out of the meeting with the
whole review board with the feeling
on my part that the conclusion would
be what we reached, and essentially
as I gathered the guys -- I said
essentially, 'Does anybody disagree
with this? Wnat thoughts does any-
body have?'

"And that 's why it was such a short
meeting, because everybef.y had heard
the same data and everybody essen-
tially agreed. " 211/
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Thus, while the threat of litigation was a "very important" f actor

in the Board 's decision, the USA Board concluded that the nuclear

project retained an economic advantage over other alternatives at

that point in time.

Faced with a Dow USA Board decision that found the nuclear

project still economically viable, Dow continued to entertain the

fear that if it volunteered any other information adverse to the

Consumers' position, including the threat of litigation itself,

massive protracted litigation would result. As Mr. Nute stated:

Q "Well, asswne for the mcment that
Consumers Power was not in the posture
of providing Dow's testimony and that
instead of later, Dow had to have by
this time been ordered to be a party
by the Board and to provide its own
testimony. Would it have provided
different testimony?" i

A " Assuming that we 'd still be threatened
with the lawsuit?"

Q "Right."

A "I think wo would have ached the Board
for guidance probably."

CHAIRIMAN MILLER: "In what context?
Explain that, please."

THE WITNESS: "Well, what it was that
the Board vanted us to testify
about. We were concerned about
volunteering somathing or having
been said to volunteer something
so that in later litictation if it
got back to the (Tuontion of the
intent behind volunteering that,
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whether there was some intent to
cause Consumers to lose its li-
conse, so mayba one of the things
,-- I 'm i ust speculating, we mictht
h ave gone to the Board and asked _
for direction. I don't know."
(emphasis supplied)

CIIAIRMAN MILLER: "Well, would you
have revealed -- Would Dow have
revealed to the Board that it was
operating under what it considered
to be threats of litigation which
might have some impact upon the
extent of its proffered testimony?"

THE WITNESS: "I think it would have
been more in the nature that we had
this obligation to support under
Paragraph 3 yet we 're supposed to
put in testimony, what does the
Board war.t? And if they asked,
as they later did, why are you
concerned about that, it probably
would have come out. The question
again wac about volunteering some-
thing."

i

CIIAIRMTsM MILLER: "bhat I 'm asking
you is in your initial -- Dow's
initial contact with the Board on
that question, whether er not it
would have affirmatively revealed
to the Board that there was sorre
question as to what Dow considered
to be threats of litigation."

TIIE WITEESS: "I don't know."

CIIAII? MAN MILLER: "hho would know?"

TIIE WITNESS: "You 're asking me to
speculate on what would have
happened if, and - "
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CIIAIRMAN MILLER: "NO, I'm asking your
best judgment as to whether Dow
would have or would not have affirma-
tively revealed certain things to
the Board. Those certain things
would rotate about this question
of your interpretation of a threat
as to consequences."

THE WITNESS: "I think yes , if the
Board had asked we would have
told them."

CHAIRMAN MILLER: " Pardon me? "

THE WITNESS: "If the Board had asked
a cuestion along that line that
we would have to]d thera. "
(emphasis supplied)

CIIAIRMAN MILLER: "But it would have
been necessary for the Board to
ask the right auestion to cet

that information?"
(emphasis supplied)

THE WITNESS: "I think it would be
'

necessary th at we d id n ' t appe ar
to be volunteering anvthina."
(emphasis supplied)

CHAIRMAN MILLER: " Explain that to me .
I'm not sure v. hat you 're saying,
whether that would have been
necessary for the Board to ask
the right question to get that
information from Dow or not. "

THE WITNESS: "I don ' t think we
would have come and said we need
guidance because we 've been
threatened with a lawsuit. I
think we would have said we
need some guidance from the
Board. If the Board would
have asked, v.hy do you need
that guidance, we probably
would have tcld them."

1301 155

- 80 -



C11 AIRMAN MILLER: "Would have told them
wh at? "

THE WITNESS: "That we had this threat
of a lawsuit if we appeared to
fructrate the license without
being obvious about it, and we
wanted direction from the Board
on how we should proceed." 212/

CONCLUSION

In view of the fact that the Dow USA Board had indepen-

dently concluded that the nuclear project continued to maintain

an economic advantage over other alternativen and did not con-

clude that the threats of litigation were the only reason why

Dow should remain committed to the project, Dow was justified

in not advising the Board of the threats by Consumers. The Dow
i

USA Board decision was supported by an independent basis, i.e.,

economics. Moreover, in view of the probability that Consumers

would charge Dow with deliberately sabotaging the project by

advising the Board of the " alleged " threats, Dow was justified

in not disclosing the threats to the Board. Dow recognized that

*/ Since Consumers now denies making any
threats to Dow, it is clear that Consumers
would have denied such conduct had Dow
disclosed the threats to the Board when
made.
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it was the only legally vulnerable party if the construction li-
conses were suspended or revoked. It, not the ASLB, the staff or

Intervenors, would have been left to face Consumers in a protracted

legal battle if suspension or revocation of the construction li-
conses occurred. Finally, the threats made by Consumers against

Dow were disclosed during the course of the suspension hearing

during cross-examination of Mr. Temple and the production of the
Nute notes. With this information before it, the Board nonetheless

concluded that no action should be taken. 'Ih u s , the Board appar-

ently did not view the threats as material to its decision.

X. SUMRa.RY

The hearing held during July 1979 was an outgrowth of a '

statemant which appeared in the ASLB Opinion and Order dated

September 23, 1977, as amended by order dated November 4, 1977.
That statement provided as follows:

"10 There is evidence in this record
that Licensee has considered conducting its
share of this proceeding in such a way as to
not disclose important facts to the Board.
Notes taken by a Dow attorney of meetings
with Consumers' attorneys indicate the desire
of the latter to ' finesse' the dispute with
Dow if no Intervonors appeared (Intervenors
Ex. 25, page 2, paragraph B) . The same notes
reflect the exploration by a Consumers ' a t--
torney of the possibility of using Dow wit-
nesses unfamiliar with the facts relating
to the Dow-Consumars dispute to testify at
the hearing; they further disclose a pro-
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posed strategy by Consumers to ' drag feet'
in tha hearing process because as long as
construction continues, Consumers 'has a
lever' (page 3, paragraph 4). Assuming
that the prcposals set out here were made
and acted upon, none were successful.
Aggressive Intervonors did appear and the
Dow-Consumers matter was aired; the Daw
witnesses furnished were highly knowledge-
able men (Mr. Temple headed the Michigan
Division of Dow) ; and Licensee has not
slowed the suspension hearing. Of course
there remains the suspicion, raised by the
disclosure of these instances, that there
may have been sinilar ploys which were
successful."

Subsequently, on February 14, 1978, the Atomic Safety and Licensing

Appeals Board filed its decision which affirmed the decision of the

ASLB not to suspend the construction licenses. The ASLAB decision

in a footnote, noted as follows:

6

"By we have eschewed any comment on the
significance of the events which led the Board
below to include in paragraphs 9-11 of its de-
cision (G NRC at 485-86, as amended by order of
November 4, 1977) comments relating to an
alleged, albeit unsuccessful, attempt by the
applicant to prevent full disclosure of the
facts relating to Dow's intentions with regard
to its contract. That matter was not put to
rest by the November 4th order. Nor was it
dealt with -- indeed it was specifically ex-
cluded from consideration -- in another order
the Board issued that same day, referring cor-
tain attorney misconduct charges to a special
licensing board pursuant to 10 C.F.R. 92. 713 (c ) .
That Board has since been told by the Commission
to attempt to settle those charges, failing
which it will be dissolved (January 3 0, 1978
letter from the Chairman of the Commission to
the Chairman of the Special Licensing Board) .
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The reasons the Commission gave for dissolving
the special board do not apply to the entirely
different type of charges involved here. And
it is important that they be fully aired and
resolved. Consequently, we fully expect both
that matter and the merits of the ACRS's 'un-
resolved safety issues ' to be explored f urther
at future hearings before the Licensing Board.
This must be done whether or not the parties
are themselves otherwise interested in pur-
suing these matters."

The July 1979 hearing was preceded by the taking of depo-

sitions of virtually all the witnesses who subsequently testified

at the hearing. The hearing itself was exhaustive, lasting five

weeks and producing over 4,000 pagcc of transcript as well as

hundreds of exhibits. The issues set out in the Board 's Order

of May 3, 1979 were fully explored. Dow believes that the record

establishes the following:

i

1. During the course of a September 21,
1976 meeting with Dow, Consumers did
express a belief that certain matters
could be " finessed" if no Intervenors
appeared at the suspension hearing.
However, Intervenors did appear at
the hearing and all relevant issues
were fully explored.

2. During the course of a September 21,
1976 meeting with Dow, Consumers did
suggest the possibility of using a Dow
witness who was not fully knowledge-
abic of the Dow-Consumers relationship.
Ultimately, Mr. Temple was called as the
Dow witness and was Dow's most knowledge-
able witness on the issue of the inten-
tions of The Dow Chemical Company re-
garding the nuclear project.
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3. During the course of a September 21,
1976 meeting with Dow, Consumers did
state that Consumers would have a " lever"
as long as construction continued. How-
ever, there was no evidence offered to
show that Consumers attempted to delay
the suspension hearing or the hearing
on the merits.

4. During the course of a September 21,
1976 meeting and a September 24, 1976
meeting with Dow, Consumers did threaten
to sue Dow if the construction licenses
were suspended as a result of Dow's
failure to positively support Consumers '
position in the suspension hearing.
The threats affected Dow and its
counsel in their involvement in the
preparation of the Temple testimony,
causing them to avoid volunteering
information that Consumers might
thereafter claim was not "s upportive "
as well as causing them to try to have
Consumers draf t the testimony.

5. The role of Dow's attorneys in the
preparation for the ASLB hearing was
proper in all respects. '

G. The d trect testimony of FT. Temple was
properly prepared even though it did
not contain a reference to the Michigan
Division recommendation. That recommen-
dation had been superseded by the de-
cision of the Dow USA Board, which de-
cision expressed the intention of The
Dow Chemical Company with respect to
taking electricity and steam from the
nuclear plant.

7. Mr. Temple was in fact Dow's most
knowledgeable witness even though he
did not take part in the Dow Chemical USA Board
deliberations that took place immediately
following the presentation by the review
team. He testified fully and knowledge-
ably at the suspension hearing.
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8. Mr. Temple was actively involved in the
preparation of his testimony and it was
in fact his testimony that was filed
with the Board.

9. There was nothing improper in Dow's
failure to adviso the ASLB of Consumers '
threat to sue Dow if the licenses were
suspended due to Dow's failure to
positively support Consumers ' position
in the suspension hearings. After the
threats were made, the Dow USA Board
considered them in a corporate review
that also found the project to be
economically advantageous to Dow.
While the threats were considered in
reaching the Dow USA Board decision,
other factors favorable to the project
were considered as well. The threats,
while a factor considered by the Dow
USA Doard, were not the sole basis for
the Dow USA Board decision. Dow rightly
feared that disclosure of this informa-
tion to the Board might be viewed by
Con s uner s , in the event of a subsequent

fh suspensjon for any reason, as not being
,

" supportive " of Consumers -- with the
result of a multi-million dollar law-
suit being brought against Dow.

The evidence thus clearly shows no wrongdoing on the part of Dow

or any of its counsel in the preparation of the Temple testimony

or in the preparation for the hearing or the conduct of the

hearing itself.
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XI. DISPOSITION

Based on the f acts as elicited at the hearing of this

matter and as discussed above, Dow believes that the Board must

conclude that, with respect to Dow and its counscl:

1. There was no attempt by Dow or its

attorneys to prevent full disclosure

of, or to withhold, relevant, factual

information from the Licensing Board

at the suspension hearings.

'2. There was no failure by Dow or its

attorneys to make affirmative, full

disclosure on the record of the

material facts relating to Dow's

intention concerning performance

of its contract with Consumers.

3. There was no attempt by Dow or its

attorneys to present misleading testi-

mony to the Licensing Board concerning

Dow's intentions.
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4. There was no attempt by Dow or its

attorneys to mislead the Licensing

Board concerning the preparation or

presentation of the Temple testimony.

.

October / [ 1979DATED: Res ful,1 ubmitted,
--

- Mtd-
.

R./L. Ddvis -
S(nior Attorney

for The Dow Chemical Company
47 Building
Midland, Michigan 48640
(517) 636-4781

FISCIIER, FRANKLIN, FORD, Sill 0N & IIOGG

By: L. y,
William C. Potter, Jr.

Attorneys
for The Dow Chemical Company

1700 Guardian Building
Detroit, Michigan 48226
(313) 962-5210
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ADDENDUM

COUNSEL FOR A PARTY OR WITNESS IIAS NO
OBLIGATION TO PRODUCE INFORMATION TO
OTIIER PARTIES OR TO TIIE ASLB IF NO
REOUEST IS MTDE FOR TIIAT INFORMATION.

During the course of the hearing, documents were periodi-

cally produced by consumers and Dow when request was made for such

production. Periodically, comments were made by Board members

that have caused Dow to conclude that this Board may believe that

there is a duty on all counsel who come before it to voluntarily

produce to the Board and others all information " relevant" to the

matter before the Board v/ nether specifically requested by the

Board, Staff counsel or counsel for other parties or not. Dow

counsel can find no written authority to support the existence

'
o f s uch a "d uty " . Dow counsel believes that such a " duty" is

so at odds with the rules traditionally governing the conduct

of litigation that the Board should consider formal rule-making

before imposing such a " duty" on counsel for parties and witnesses.

_.

*/ A discussion arguing in favor of ' greater
duty of disclosure by counsel appearing in
non-adversarial administrative proceedings
can be found in "An Appraisal of Attorneys'
Responsibilities Before Adrainistrative
Agencies", 26 Cane wstern Reserve Law
Review 285 (1976).
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The question of what information counsel for a party or

witness before an ASLB must voluntarily disclose raises a conflict

between a lawyer 's duty to preserve his client's confidences and

secrets and the possible adverse effect that non-disclosure of

information may havn on the interest of the public in having full

disclosure of all the pertinent facts. The Code o_f. Professional

Responsibility clearly sets out a lawyer 's duty to his client with

respect to information the client imparts to the lawyer. DR 4-101

imposes a strict ethical obligation on an attorney to preserve the

" confidences and cecrets" of his clients. A " confidence " is de-

fined as information protected by the attorney-client privilege.

A " secret" is other information gained in the professional rela-

tionship that the client has recuested be held inviolate, or the

disclosure of which would be embarrassing or decrimental to the
i

client. Since the attornev 's duty of confidentiali ty under DR 4-101

extends to " secrets " , which by definition include infornation bsvond

the scone of the attorney-client nriviloco , the ethical duty of

si)ence mandated by DR 4-101 is much broader than the attorney-

client nrivilege. Thus, the ethical duty of confidentiality

exists regardless of the " nature or source of the information or

the f act that others share the information. " Ethical Consideration

4-4.

Despite the breadth of the ethical duty of confidentiality,
it is not without qualification. Thus, an attorney must reveal

" confidences or secrets when permitted under Disciplinary Rules

or required by law or court order." [DR 4-101(C) (2) ]
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Although not directed towards the disclosure of confi-

dential attorney-client communications, DR 7-102 (A) sets forth

relevant considerations concerning the introduction and non-

disclosure of evidence and provides, in pertinent part, as

follows:

"(A) In his representation of a client, a
lawyer shall not:

***

(3) Conceal or knowingly fail to
disclose that which he is re-
quired by law to reveal.

(4) Knowingly use perjured testi-
mony or false evidence.

(5) Knowingly make a false state-
ment of law or fact.

(6) Participate in the creation or
preservation of evidence when
he known or it is obvious that i

the evidence is falso."

Moreover, Ethical Consideration 7-27 provides that "a lawyer should

not suppress evidence that he or his client has a , legal obligation

to reveal o_r_ p_roduce." (emphasis supplied)
_

The only Discip.linary Rule that reauires the disclosure

of attorney-client communications is DR 7-102 (B) (1) , which provideo:

" (B) A lawyer who receives information clearly
establishing that:
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(1) His client has, in the course of the
representation, perpetrated a fraud
upon a person or tribunal shall
promptly call upon his client to
rectify the same, and if his client
refuses or is unable to do so, he
shall reveal the fraud to the af-
fected person or tribunal, except
when the information is protected
as a privileged communication."

In sum, the applicable Disciplinary Rules and Ethical Con-

siderations of the Code of Professional Responsibility impose no

duty upon an attorney to reveal all relevant information to the

Board, any other party, or anyone else. If anythina , these con-

siderations hold that an attorney 's primary duty is to preserve the

confidences and secrets of his client unless disclosure is (a) per-

mitted under the Disciplinary Ru3es or (b) required av law or court

order.*

Relevant ABA Opinions further demonstrate that an attorney 's
i

primary duty in to protect the confidences and secrets of his client.

In Ann opinion 341, the Committee on Ethics and Professional Respon-

sibility had occasion to construe DR 7-102 (B) which conoc ens the duty

of an attorney to disclose his client 's fraud. In interpreting

DR 7-102 (B) so as not to require an attorney to dinclose a client's

confidences or secrets, the Committee stated:

"The tradition (which is backed by sub-
stantial policy considerations) that permits
a lawyer to assure a client that information

*/ The primacy of this duty appears to be conceded
by commentators although they question the wis-
dom of such an approach in certain situations.
See "An Appraisal of Att.orneys' Responsibilities
Before Administrative Agencies", sucra: "The Role
of Counsel In The Suppression of Truth", 1978 Duke

'

Law Journal 921; "h'nere The Bodies Are Duried",
"The Adversary System" and "The obligation of
Con fiden tiali.ty ", 10 Crim. L. Bull. 979 (1974).
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(whether a confidence or secret) given to
him will not be revealed to third parties
is so important that it should take prece-
;'nce, in all but the most serious cases,
over the duty imposed by DR 7-102 (B) . The
many annotations 'o DR 4-101 reflect this
policy."

The Committee further noted it believed "that it is inconsistent

with the lawyer's confidential relationship with his client to

impose at the same time a duty to evaluate the client 's confi-

donces to determine whether tre level of fraud has been reached

that would require disclosure of such confidences. "

ABA Opinion 287 deals with tha question of whether an

attorney has a duty to advise the court of information which is

contrary to his client 's testimony in court. The Committee re-

solved the dilen~ta in f avor of the cancti ty of the attorney-client
'

confidences. The Committee held that former Canon 37 (requiring

the lawyer to preserve his client's confidences) superseded former

Canons 22 (requiring the lawyer to treat the court with candor and

fairness, 29 (demanding that counsel upon the trial of a cause in

which perjury has been committed bring the matter to the authori-

ties) and 41 (requiring the lawyer to inform the injured party or

his counsel upon learning of some fraud). Thus, the Committee

implicitly decided that, in the case under consideration, the

lawyer 's duty to preserve his client 's confidences took prece-

donce over his duty to the cot.rt.
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Finally, in ABA Opinion 314, the Committee considered

tho duty of disclosure owed the Internal Revenue Service by

lawyers practicing before it. Although the Committee recognized

that the IRS had no machinery or procedure for adversary proceed-

ings involving the weighing of conflicting testimony and cross-

examination (such as this Board does), it determined that the ab-

solute duty not to make false statements did not "reonire the

disclosure of weaknesses in the client's case and in no event does

it reanire disclosure of confidences. ..." The Committee further

noted that "[i]n all cases, with regard both to preparation of

returns and negotiating administrative settlements, the lawyer

is under a duty not to mislead the Internal Revenue Service

deliberately and af firmatively, c1'_aer by misstatements or by

silence or by permitting his client to misicad."

i

From the foregoing, it is cletr that an attorney 's

obligation to his client requires that i aluntarily disclose

any information received from the clien un 2ss required to do so

by soma legal obligation . In the absenn :r discovery requests

made under the applicable rules of the NRC, an attorney is under no

obligation to disgorge information to the Board or anyone else.

The Code of professional Responsibility provides:

"A lawyer appearing before an administra-
tive agency, regardless of the nature of the
proceeding it is conducting, has the continu-
ing duty to advance the cause of his client
within the bounds of the law. " (Ethic al
Consideration 7-15)
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***

"The duty of a la grer to his client and
his duty to the lega1 tystem are the same:
to represent his cli e zealously within the
bounds of the law." (Ethical Consideration
7-19)

***

"The complexity of law often makes it
difficult for a tribunal to be fully in-
formed unless the pertinent law is presented
by the lawyers in the cause. A tribunal that
is fully informed on the apoli_ cable law i s
better able to make a f air and accurate de-
termination of the matter before it. The
a_dvers ary system contemolates that each
lawyer will present and argue the existing
law in the licht most favorable to his
client." (Ethical Consideration 7-23)
(emphasis supplied)

While in the abstract, such a modus ocarandi may sound

harsh and increase the risk that all needed information may not

'
reach the Board, the system will and does in fact work so long

ac counsel for all parties perform their assigned functions.

This means that staff counsel must also take an active role as

representative of the public and conduct discovery under the

Commission's rules when necessary to prepare their case rather

than simply rely on a possible adversary relationship between

an applicant and an intervenor to force out all information

deemed necessary to a Board decision. As an example, during

discovery in preparation for the most recent hearing and in the

hearing itself, Staff counsel appeared to believe that the Michigan

Division position was in f act material and should have been
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disclosed in the direct testimony of Mr. Temple. Dow does not

agree. However, if staff had taken an active role in discovery

in the earlier proceeding, this matter would never have become

an issue in this proceeding. Staff would have seen the septem-

ber 13, 1976 Dow negotiating meeting notes den they were made

available for review by all parties on October 18, 1976 in

Jackson, Michigan. Those notes clearly set out the fact of

the Michigan Division position and the reasons for it. Staff

could then have offered the information to the Board if it in

fact thought it material to the Board 's decision.

CONCLUSION
,

At present, there is no legally recognized obli-

gation of counsel for a party or uitness to voluntarily produce

and disclose to the Board and other parties all information

" relevant" to a matter before the Board in the absence of a

discovery request. If the Board intends to impose an obliga-

tion on counsel for parties and witnesses to voluntarily dis-

close all " relevant" information, a rule-making proceeding

should be followed so as to apprize counsel of the " duty " to

which they will be required to adhere den appearing before
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.

the Board, allow them an opportunity to comment on the wisdom

of adopting a rule imposing such a " duty" and then advise their

clients of the " rule".
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

BEFORP THE ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD

In the Matter of )
)

CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY ) Docket Nos. 50-329CP
) 5 0-33 0CP

(Midland Plant, Units 1 and 2) )
) (REMAND PROCEEDING)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned, an employee in the offices of Fischer,

Franklin, Ford, Simon & Hogg, attorneys for The Dow Chemical Company

in the above Romand Proceeding, hereby certifies that on the 15th day

of October, 1979, he personally served the individuals listed below

with the indicated number of copies of the foregoing Brief of The Dow

Chemical Company Incorporating Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

and Addendum, along with Appendix of The Dow Chemical Company Contain-

ing Footnote Citations to Transcript and Exhibits, to-wit:

Marshall E. Miller, Esq. (one copy)
Chairman, Atomic Safety and Licensing Board
U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Washington, D. C. 20555

Dr. Emmeth A. Luebke (one copy)
Atomic Safety and Licensing Board
U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Washington, D. C. 20555

William J. Olmstead, Esq. (three copies)
Counsel for NRC Staff
U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Washington, D. C. 20555
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Gerald Charnoff, Esq. (three copies)
Mn. Bradford Reynolds, Esq.
Shaw, Pittman, Potts & Trowbridge
1800 M Street, N.W.
Washington, D. C. 20036

DATED: October 15, 1979 h,de/[i, E //m /,6,
Philip E. Chaffpe

.,
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISJ70N

BEFORE THE ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD

In the Matter of )
)

CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY ) Docket Nos. 50-329CP
) 5 0-33 0CP

(Midland Plant, Units 1 and 2) )
) (REMAND PROCEEDING)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned, an employee in the offices of Fischer,

Franklin, Ford, Simon & Hogg, attcrneys for The Dow Chemical Company in

the above Romand Proceeding, hereby certifies that on the 15th day of

October, 1979, each of the individuals listed below were separately

served with a copy of the foregoing Brief of The Dow Chemical Company i

Incorporating Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Addendum,

along with Appendix of The Dow Chemical Company Containing Footnote

Citations to Transcript and Exhibits, by first class mail, postage

fully prepaid, to-wit:

Dr. J. Venn Leeds, Jr., Esq.
Atomic Safety and Licensing Board
10807 Atwell
Houston, Texas 77096

Michael I. Miller, Esq.
Ronald G. Zamarin, Esq.
Isham, Lincoln & Beale
One First National Plaza - Suite 4200
Ch icago, Illinois 60603

Myron M. Cherry, Esq.
One IMB Plaza - Suite 4501
Ch icago, Illinois 606 301 1~/5
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Ms. Mary Sinclair
5711 Summerset Street
Midland, Michigan 48640

Mr. Steve Gadler
2120 Carter Avenue
St. Paul, Minnesota 55108

Norton Hatlie, Esq.
P. O. Box 103
Navarre, Minnesota 55392

Judd L. Bacon, Esq.
Consumers Power Company
212 West Michigan Avenue
Jackson, Michigan 49201

j,IJcnh% b>ak koDATED: October 15, 1979
Antoinette Petrille.
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